
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Charlotte Evans 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864210   Ebost: evansca1@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 6 Ionawr 2021 

 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod digidol o'r Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal trwy Microsoft Teams ar  Dydd Mercher, 13eg 
Ionawr, 2021 am 10.30 am. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  .  Mae croeso i chi 
ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn 
dymuno gwneud hynny.  
 
Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld trwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio 
trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr 
unigolion sy'n bresennol ac/neu sy'n siarad yn ystod y Cabinet ar gael i'r cyhoedd trwy'r recordiad ar 
wefan y Cyngor: www.caerffili.gov.uk 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/


I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 9 Rhagfyr 2020.  

1 - 8 
 

4  Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 16 Rhagfyr 2020.  
9 - 12 

 
To note the Cabinet Forward Work Programme. 
 
5  Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.  

13 - 14 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt: - 
 
6  Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen Meysydd Parcio Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili.  

15 - 46 
 

7  Polisi Gwerthu Gorfodol.  
47 - 60 

 
8  Dyfarniad Cyflog Athrawon 2020/21.  

61 - 64 
 

9  Cynigion Cyllideb Drafft ar gyfer 2021/22.  
65 - 78 

 
 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 S. Cook, N. George, C.J. Gordon, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, J. Ridgewell, Mrs E. Stenner a 
R. Whiting,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  
01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


  

 

Y CABINET 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD O BELL A GYNHALIWYD AR MICROSOFT TEAMS 
DDYDD MERCHER, 9 RHAGFYR 2020 AM 10.30 A.M. 

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Y Cynghorydd P. Marsden (Arweinydd) - Cadeirydd 

 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

S. Cook (Gofal Cymdeithasol), N. George (Gwastraff a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd), C. Gordon 
(Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), S. Morgan (Economi a Menter), J. Ridgewell (Amgylchedd ac 
Isadeiledd), E. Stenner (Perfformiad a Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid) ac R. Whiting (Dysgu a 
Chyflawniad).   
 

Yn ogystal â: 
 
 C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr), R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a 

Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Thai) ac M.S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro – Cymunedau).  

  
Hefyd yn bresennol: 

 
V. Camp (Rheolwr Trawsnewid), S. Ellis (Arweinydd Cynhwysiant ac ADY), R. Kyte (Pennaeth 
Adfywio a Chynllunio), J. Lougher (Rheolwr Chwaraeon a Datblygu Hamdden), S. O’Donnell 
(Prif Swyddog Treth y Cyngor ac Ardrethi Annomestig), S. Richards (Pennaeth Cynllunio a 
Strategaeth Addysg), A. West (Rheolwr Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif, Derbyniadau a 
Gwaharddiadau), R. Tranter (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Swyddog Monitro), C. 
Evans (Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor).  

 

 
RECORDIO A THREFNIADAU PLEIDLEISIO 

 
Atgoffodd yr Arweinydd y rheiny oedd yn bresennol bod y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffilmio, ond ni 
fyddai’n cael ei ddarlledu’n fyw. Fodd bynnag, byddai recordiad ar gael ar ôl y cyfarfod ar 
wefan y Cyngor – Cliciwch yma i wylio.  Rhoddodd wybod y byddai penderfyniadau’n cael eu 
gwneud ar Microsoft Forms.   

 
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd L. Phipps (Tai ac Eiddo). 
 
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 

Datganodd M.S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro – Cymunedau) fuddiant yn 
eitem agenda 7 – Rhaglen Band B Addysg ac Ysgolion ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif – Adroddiadau 
Ymgynghori – fel Aelod Pwyllgor o Glwb Rygbi Penallta a gadawodd y cyfarfod yn ystod yr 
eitem. 
 
 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

https://youtu.be/kGZt1YYvBtM


  

 
 
 

3. CABINET – 25 TACHWEDD 2020 
 

PENDERFYNWYD y dylid cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 25 
Tachwedd 2020 yn gofnod cywir. 
 
 

4. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y CABINET – I’W NODI 
 

Cafodd aelodau’r Cabinet weld Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet, oedd yn manylu’r adroddiadau 
oedd wedi’u trefnu o 9 Rhagfyr 2020 i 16 Rhagfyr 2020. Atgoffwyd yr aelodau bod 
Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet yn ddogfen weithredol, ac felly’n amodol i newid.   
 
Gofynnodd Aelod am Flaenraglen Waith manylach, fyddai’n rhoi darlun tymor hirach. Eglurodd 
Swyddogion nad oedd hyn yn bosibl oherwydd y Pandemig a’i effeithiau ar wasanaethau. 
Fodd bynnag, roedd llawer o Brosiectau Strategol fyddai’n llywio Blaenraglen Waith 2021, 
fyddai’n cael eu hychwanegu cyn y cyfarfod nesaf.  

 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid nodi’r Flaenraglen Waith. 
Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy godi llaw. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD y dylid nodi Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet. 
 
 

5. SYLFAEN TRETH Y CYNGOR 2021-2022 
 
 Roedd yr adroddiad yn cynnwys manylion am Sylfaen Treth y Cyngor ar gyfer 2021/22 at 

ddibenion gosod trethi a’r ganran gasglu fyddai’n cael ei defnyddio. 
 
 Nodwyd bod Deddf Cyllid Llywodraeth Leol 1992 a’r Rheoliadau Awdurdodau Lleol (Cyfrifo 

Sylfaen Treth y Cyngor) (Cymru) 1995 fel y’i diwygiwyd yn gosod y rheolau ar gyfer cyfrifo 
sylfaen Treth y Cyngor. Yn unol â Deddf Cyllid Llywodraeth Leol 1992, dyma’r swm a ddylid ei 
ddefnyddio i gyfrifo Treth y Cyngor. 

 
 Nododd y Cabinet bod sylfaen Treth y Cyngor ar gyfer anheddau taladwy â gostyngiad cyfwerth 

â Band D wedi’i chyfrifo yn 62,352.06 ar gyfer 2021/22.  
 
 Nododd yr adroddiad bod cyfradd gasglu Treth y Cyngor yn ystod y flwyddyn wedi cael ei 

chynnal ar oddeutu 97% dros yr ychydig flynyddoedd diwethaf. Roedd hyn wedi’i gyflawni yn 
wyneb cyllidebau a lefelau staffio gostyngedig. Mae’r Awdurdod yn weithredol yn mynd ar ôl  
holl ôl-ddyledion Treth y Cyngor, sy’n arwain at y gyfradd gasglu o 97% yn gwella’n rheolaidd 
dros amser. Mae hyn yn golygu bod arian dros ben o ran Treth y Cyngor ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn 
ariannol; ar gyfer 2019/20 roedd £1.305m o arian dros ben. Gofynnwyd i Aelodau nodi bod yr 
arian dros ben yn cael ei ddefnyddio i gefnogi cyllideb waelodlin yr Awdurdod. 

 
 Diolchodd y Cabinet i’r Swyddog am yr adroddiad, a dechreuodd y drafodaeth. 
 
 O ystyried y materion o ran yr economi a chyflogaeth o ganlyniad i’r Pandemig, gofynnodd Aelod 

beth oedd y tebygolrwydd o’r gyfradd gasglu’n lleihau, yn ogystal â’r gefnogaeth ar waith i 
drigolion sy’n cael trafferth. Eglurodd Swyddogion bod y targed o 97% yn cael ei bodloni pob 
blwyddyn, o ganlyniad i Swyddogion yn mynd ar ôl taliadau. Rhoddir diweddariadau rheolaidd i 
Lywodraeth Cymru, ac er nad oes unrhyw gyllid ychwanegol ar gael ar hyn o bryd, gall hyn 
newid yn y dyfodol. Cafodd yr Aelodau sicrwydd y byddai’r Swyddogion yn dal i geisio 
casgliadau, a chynorthwyo ble bo angen, gan gefnogi’r cysyniad Gofalu am Gaerffili, gyda staff 
Treth y Cyngor yn rhoi cymorth a chyngor ar ôl-ddyledion, yn ogystal â chydweithio gyda staff 

Page 2



  

Tai i fynd ar ôl ôl-ddyledion rhent, a chysylltiadau gyda sefydliadau allanol er mwyn cynorthwyo 
i reoli dyledion. 

 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo’r argymhelliad yn yr 
adroddiad. Cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol drwy bleidleisio’n electronig. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD oherwydd y rhesymau a nodwyd yn Adroddiad y Swyddogion: - 

 
i) Y dylid cynnal cyfradd gasglu Treth y Cyngor yn 97.50% ar gyfer 2021/22; 
 
ii) Mai 60,793.26 fyddai sylfaen Treth y Cyngor ar gyfer 2021/22, gyda sylfaen 

Treth y Cyngor ar gyfer pob ardal Cyngor Cymuned yn unol â’r hyn a nodwyd 
ym mharagraff 5.5 yr adroddiad. 

 
 

6. STRATEGAETH FASNACHOL A BUDDSODDI 
 

Roedd yr adroddiad, a gafodd ei ystyried gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau ar 10 
Tachwedd 2020 yn cyflwyno’r Strategaeth Fasnachol a Buddsoddi Drafft i’r Cabinet, a’r 
cynllun gweithredu cysylltiedig oedd yn manylu blaenoriaethau’r ffrwd waith hon ar gyfer y 12 
mis nesaf. 
 
Roedd yr adroddiad hefyd yn ceisio barn, sylwadau a chymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar y 
Strategaeth Fasnachol a Buddsoddi drafft, yn ogystal â’r cynllun gweithredu cysylltiedig, a 
hefyd yn ceisio barn ac ystyriaeth y Cabinet ar y fframwaith llywodraethu, a’r dyraniad cyllid er 
mwyn lansio’r Cynllun Trwyddedu i Arloesi. 
 
Nodwyd bod Strategaeth Fasnachol a Buddsoddi drafft y Cyngor, oedd wedi’i hatodi yn 
Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad, a’r cynllun gweithredu, yn ffurfio rhan olaf y strategaeth. 
 
Mae’r Strategaeth Fasnachol a Buddsoddi wedi cael ei datblygu i gefnogi dyheadau 
Strategaeth Trawsnewid #TîmCaerffili – Yn Well Gyda’n Gilydd, a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cabinet ar 12 Mehefin 2019. Roedd yn amlinellu’r nod o ddatblygu syniadau masnachol, 
wedi’u hategu gan yr egwyddor ‘Calon Gymdeithasol a Phen Masnachol’. 
 
Roedd y Strategaeth Fasnachol a Buddsoddi’n cynnwys llawer o nodau allweddol, 
blaenoriaethau a manylion ar sut bydd y rhain yn cael eu bodloni, a sut byddwn yn monitro 
cynnydd. Mae wedi’i hategu gan y weledigaeth ‘Elw gyda Phwrpas’. 
 
Nodwyd bod y cynllun gweithredu’n cynnwys y rhestr gychwynnol o flaenoriaethau ar gyfer y 
Strategaeth Fasnachol a Buddsoddi, ond hefyd yn nodi y bydd hyn yn newid, a bydd angen 
bod yn hyblyg dros amser. Mae’r Strategaeth hefyd yn gosod y sylfeini ar gyfer creu’r cynllun 
Trwyddedu i Arloesi. 
 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i’r Swyddog am yr adroddiad, a’r gwaith caled o ran cyflwyno’r adroddiad 
a’r cynigion, a dechreuodd y drafodaeth. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod Cabinet am ragor o wybodaeth am y broses Bwrdd y Prosiect, ac eglurodd 
y Swyddogion bod y Bwrdd yn efelychu’r broses sydd ar waith ar gyfer y Bwrdd Prosiect 
Adfywio. Roedd Panel newydd wedi’i greu er mwyn ystyried unrhyw syniadau yn erbyn yr 
egwyddorion a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad. Roedd yr Aelodau’n falch o nodi bod rhai syniadau 
eisoes wedi cael eu cyflwyno. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, penderfynwyd y dylid cymeradwyo argymhellion yr adroddiad. 
Cafodd hyn ei gytuno’n unfrydol drwy gadarnhad ar lafar a Microsoft Forms. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD oherwydd y rhesymau a nodwyd yn Adroddiad y Swyddog:- 

 

Page 3



  

i) Cymeradwyo dyraniad o £50 mil o arian sbarduno o gronfeydd wrth gefn 
Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol er mwyn bwrw ymlaen â syniadau a 
chysyniadau; 

 
ii) Ystyried dyraniad yn y gyllideb graidd ar gyfer y fenter hon yn rhan o’r broses o 

osod y Gyllideb ar gyfer 2021/22;  
 

iii) Y byddai’r Bwrdd Adfywio’n dyrannu’r arian sbarduno, ar ôl y broses panel 
asesu (yn unol â’r broses ddrafft ar gyfer y cynllun trwyddedu i arloesi a 
nodwyd yn atodiad 3 yr adroddiad). 

 
 
7. RHAGLEN BAND B ADDYSG AC YSGOLION AR GYFER YR 21AIN GANRIF – 

ADRODDIADAU YMGYNGHORI  
 

Cafodd yr Adroddiadau Ymgynghori a’r argymhellion i’r Cabinet i fwrw ymlaen at gam 
Hysbysiad Statudol ar y ddau gynnig eu cefnogi gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg ar 26 
Tachwedd 2020. Roedd yr Adroddiadau Ymgynghori’n amlinellu’r broses ymgynghori a 
roddwyd ar waith, gan grynhoi’r materion a godwyd, a chynnig eglurder ar y wybodaeth a 
gyflwynwyd drwy ymgysylltu ag ymgynghoreion, ar gynigion yn rhan o raglen Band B Ysgolion 
a Cholegau yr 21ain Ganrif Llywodraeth Cymru mewn perthynas â: 
 
Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon 
Adleoli ac ehangu Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon i fod yn ysgol cyfrwng Cymraeg a 
adeiladwyd yn bwrpasol, i’w lleoli ar safle gwag Ysgol Uwchradd Cwmcarn gynt. 
 
Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod 
Ymestyn Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod bresennol, drwy estyniad adeiladol 
newydd a gofod chwarae awyr agored.   
 
Nodwyd bod Aelodau’r Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg wedi cael gwybod bod dyletswydd, yn unol â 
Chod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion 2018, ar Aelodau Cabinet i ystyried cynnwys pob Adroddiad 
Ymgynghori er mwyn pennu a yw’n briodol i symud ymlaen i gam nesaf y broses, sef 
cyhoeddi Hysbysiad Statudol. 
 
Aeth cynigion Band B Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif ar gyfer Ysgol a Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r 
Drindod ac Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon i ymgynghoriad ffurfiol rhwng 14 Medi 2020 a 26 
Hydref 2020. Ymgynghorwyd â’r Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg yn rhan o’r broses hon yn eu 
cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 22 Medi 2020. Fel ymgynghorai, pleidleisiodd yr Aelodau’n unfrydol o 
blaid cynnig Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon ac 13 o blaid ac 1 yn erbyn cynnig Ysgol a 
Chanolfan Adnoddau Cae’r Drindod. 
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Cabinet Addysg a Chyflawniad yr eitem, gan amlinellu’r rhesymeg a’r 
prosesau Statudol oedd yn cael eu dilyn yn unol â Deddf Trefniadau a Safonau Ysgolion 
(Cymru) 2013 Llywodraeth Cymru a Chod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion 2018. Tynnodd yr Aelod sylw 
hefyd at ambell i bwynt allweddol gan gynnwys mai dyma’r cyntaf o ddwy broses ymgynghori 
yn unol â’r cod, ac yn ystod y cam hwn, dim ond barn yr ymgynghoreion oedd yn cael ei 
mynegi, ac ni ddylid ystyried unrhyw sylwadau negyddol yn wrthwynebiadau. 

 
Trafododd Swyddog yn cynrychioli’r Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif gyflwyniad gyda’r 
Aelodau Cabinet, oedd yn cynnwys y broses ymgynghori a’r broses benderfynu yn eu 
cyfanrwydd. Amlinellodd y Swyddog pob cynnig, a chrynhoi cynnwys yr Adroddiadau 
Ymgynghori, gan drafod unrhyw faterion a godwyd gan ymgynghoreion a rhoi amserlen 
ddangosol pe byddai Aelodau’n cytuno i fwrw ymlaen i’r cam nesaf.   
 
Nodwyd bod pob Aelod Cabinet wedi cael copïau o’r Adroddiadau Ymgynghori, ac ymatebion 
llawn yr ymgynghoreion a phartïon eraill â diddordeb (yn eu fformatau gwreiddiol, ond yn 
ddienw) cyn y cyfarfod i’w hystyried. Pwrpas dod â’r Adroddiad i’r cyfarfod hwn oedd er mwyn 

Page 4



  

i’r Aelodau ystyried cynnwys yr Adroddiadau Ymgynghori. Mae angen i’r Awdurdod argymell i’r 
Cabinet un o’r camau canlynol ar y cam hwn 1) Bwrw ymlaen â’r cynnig, 2) Newid y cynnig 3) 
Peidio â bwrw ymlaen â’r cynnig. Gofynnir i’r Aelodau Cabinet gymeradwyo cyn gallu symud 
pob cynnig ymlaen at y cam Hysbysiad Statudol. 
 
Yna, amlinellodd yr Aelod Cabinet Addysg a Chyflawniad rai o’r prif themâu a godwyd yn 
ystod y broses ymgynghori mewn perthynas â chynnig Cae’r Drindod gan gynnwys y pryderon 
mwyaf cyffredin, y cytundeb mwyaf cyffredin ac awgrymiadau amgen, gan fynd i’r afael a nifer 
o’r materion hyn yn uniongyrchol, a chyfeirio at sylwadau a thrafodaethau yn ystod cyfarfod y 
Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg. Cymerodd yr Aelod gyfle hefyd i drafod nifer o sylwadau diweddar ar 
y cyfryngau cymdeithasol oedd wedi dod i’r amlwg am y cynigion, a rhoi eglurhad i’r Aelodau. 
 
Cadarnhawyd nad oedd Clwb Pêl-droed Rygbi Penallta na Chwaraeon Cymru wedi’u 
rhestru’n ymgynghoreion dan ganllawiau’r Cod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion 2018, fodd bynnag, 
roedd y Cyngor wedi penderfynu ymgysylltu â’r ddau sefydliad ar y cychwyn. Yn ogystal, nid 
oedd Chwaraeon Cymru wedi gwrthwynebu’r cynnig, ond wedi pennu meini prawf i’w bodloni 
er mwyn dod i gytundeb. 

 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i’r Swyddog a’r Aelod Cabinet am gyflwyno’r adroddiad mor fanwl, a 
chroesawodd yr Arweinydd y Cynghorydd Martyn James, Aelod Ward Lleol Ystrad Mynach, er 
mwyn cyflwyno sylwadau i’r Cabinet. 
 
Mynegodd y Cynghorydd James nifer o bryderon ynghylch colli mannau gwyrdd yn yr ardal leol 
o ganlyniad i’r cynigion, pryderon ynghylch ymgynghori â thrigolion lleol a defnyddwyr Clwb Pêl-
droed Rygbi Penallta, ymgorffori cyfleusterau Canolfan Blant Eneu’r-glyn ar y safle, defnydd y 
caeau a’r symudiad arfaethedig i safle Sue Noake, a gofynnodd i’r adroddiad gael ei ohirio er 
mwyn cael rhagor o wybodaeth ac ystyried safle amgen. Trafododd y Swyddogion llawer o’r 
pryderon hyn, gan nodi data ar ddefnydd y caeau a’r gwelliannau ychwanegol fyddai’n bosib i 
gyfleusterau’r caeau, defnydd deuol safle arfaethedig y cynnig a phryderon ynghylch dyblygu 
cyfleusterau. Rhoddwyd eglurder hefyd ynghylch y Strategaeth Seilwaith Gwyrdd a’r prosesau 
Cynllunio. 
 
Cyflwynodd Aelod Cabinet sylwadau’r Grŵp Achub Mannau Gwyrdd Ystrad Mynach, a 
Thrysorydd Clwb Pêl-droed Rygbi Penallta, wnaeth godi pryderon ynghylch colli mannau 
gwyrdd yn yr ardal leol, ac yn holi a fyddai’r cynigion hyn yn groes i’r Strategaeth Seilwaith 
Gwyrdd. Eglurodd y Swyddogion nad oedd y cynigion yn groes i’r Strategaeth, ac y byddai pob 
cais Cynllunio newydd yn cael ei ystyried yn erbyn sawl Deddf a Pholisi. 
 
Trafododd yr Aelodau Cabinet y data yn yr adroddiad, gan gyfeirio at yr archebion â thâl a’r 
defnydd ychwanegol yr oedd y clwb yn sôn amdano. Eglurodd y Swyddogion bod yr holl ddata 
yn yr adroddiad yn cyfeirio at yr archebion â thâl a gofrestrir drwy’r system archebu, ac 
amlygwyd bod angen trefnu pob defnydd ar gyfer gemau neu hyfforddiant (nad oes rhaid talu 
amdano) drwy’r Cyngor at ddibenion yswiriant. 
 
Yna, cyflwynodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg a Chyflawniad yr ail o’r ddwy gynnig oedd yn 
cael eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod, sef cynnig Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon. Unwaith eto, 
amlygwyd y prif themâu, gan gyfeirio at adrannau’r Adroddiad Ymgynghori ble trafodwyd y 
themâu hynny. Croesawyd nifer yr ymatebion a dderbyniwyd ynghylch y cynnig, a nododd yr 
Aelod bod y cynnig yn cynrychioli buddsoddiad sylweddol yn y gymuned leol ac addysg y rheiny 
sy’n mynychu’r ysgol. 
 
Amlygwyd bod dau aelod ward wedi anfon llythyr at aelodau’r Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg. Cafodd 
eu barn eu hystyried yn rhan o’r broses ymgynghori, a chafodd eu gwrthgynnig ei gynnwys yn 
rhan o’r rhestr lawn o ymatebion i’r ymgynghoriad. Yn ogystal, roedd y llythyr yn cyfeirio at 
ddeiseb o 2019 oedd tu allan i’r cyfnod ymgynghori, ac felly nid oedd yn gymwys i gael ei 
chynnwys. 
 

Page 5



  

Trafododd y Cabinet y cynigion ar gyfer safle Cwm Gwyddon, a’r cynigion i uno Cwm Gwyddon 
gydag Ysgolion Cynradd Abercarn a Chwmcarn. Eglurodd y Swyddogion bod y cynnig wedi 
cael ei ystyried yn ofalus, ac yn sgil adlewyrchu pellach, teimlwyd bod ehangu Cwm Gwyddon 
er mwyn ei gwneud yn eiddo addas at y diben a’r dyfodol, wrth uwchraddio Ysgolion Cynradd 
Abercarn a Chwmcarn yn galluogi disgyblion i aros yn eu dalgylch a hefyd yn cynnig darpariaeth 
addas i ddisgyblion Cwm Gwyddon. 
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo argymhelliad yr 
adroddiad. Cafodd hyn ei gytuno’n unfrydol drwy gadarnhad ar lafar ac ar Microsoft Forms. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD oherwydd y rhesymau a nodwyd yn Adroddiad y Swyddogion, bod 
y Cabinet yn cytuno i symud y ddau brosiect ymlaen at y Cam Hysbysiad Statudol, yn 
unol â Chod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion 2018. 

 
 
PENDERFYNIAD GWEITHREDOL NAD YW’N AMODOL AR ALW I MEWN 
 
 
8. COSTAU PARCIO 
 

Rhoddodd yr adroddiad ddiweddariad ar y sefyllfa ddiweddaraf o ran effaith Economaidd ar 
ganol trefi oherwydd pandemig y coronafeirws, ac roedd yn argymell y dylid cynnig rhagor o 
gyfleusterau parcio am ddim i gefnogi’r economi lleol.  
 
Mae llawer o fusnesau o fewn y Fwrdeistref Sirol wedi wynebu heriau sylweddol yn sgil Covid-
19, a’r cyfyngiadau symud a/neu’r cyfyngiadau masnachu o’i herwydd. Mae hyn yn cynnwys 
llawer o fusnesau canol trefi ac yn benodol y sector lletygarwch yng nghanol trefi. 
 
Mae cefnogi canol trefi’n nodwedd allweddol o brif strategaeth adfywio’r Cyngor (Sylfaen ar 
gyfer Llwyddiant) ac Uwchgynlluniau Adfywio Ardaloedd sydd ynghlwm wrth y brif strategaeth.   
 
Mae cyhoeddiadau diweddar Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfyngiadau i’r sector lletygarwch wedi 
rhoi rhagor o bwysau ar y stryd fawr, ble mae’r sefyllfa economaidd yn dal i fod yn hynod o 
heriol.  
 
Ar 17 Mehefin 2020, gwnaeth y Prif Weithredwr, ar y cyd â’r Arweinydd, Aelodau Cabinet a’r 
Swyddog Adran 151 Dros dro benderfyniad pwerau dirprwyedig i atal costau parcio dros dro 
tan 31 Rhagfyr 2020 yn rhan o’r cynllun i adfer yr economi ar ôl Covid-19.  
 
Oherwydd yr heriau economaidd parhaus a’r cyfyngiadau masnachu sy’n dal ar waith, mae’r 
adroddiad hwn yn gofyn i’r Cabinet gymeradwyo ar unwaith i ymestyn y cyfnod dros dro heb 
gostau parcio tan 31 Mawrth 2021. 
 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i’r Swyddog a’r Aelod Cabinet am yr adroddiad, a chroesawodd yr 
Arweinydd y Cynghorydd Kevin Etheridge, Aelod Ward Lleol Coed Duon er mwyn cyflwyno 
sylwadau i’r Cabinet. 
 
Diolchodd y Cynghorydd Etheridge i’r Cabinet am y cyfle i siarad ac o ystyried yr 
argymhelliad, rhoddodd adborth gan fusnesau lleol yn ei ward ef ar y cynigion. Roedd 
busnesau’n falch o weld y cynnig i ymestyn y cyfnod parcio am ddim yng Nghanol Trefi, sy’n 
annog rhagor o ymwelwyr i’r stryd fawr ac yn fanteisiol i drigolion o ran parcio hefyd.  
Diolchodd y Cabinet i’r Swyddogion a’r sawl Cynghorydd am y gwaith helaeth a wnaed i 
gefnogi busnesau yn ystod y Pandemig. 
 
Ychwanegodd y Prif Weithredwr bod y cynigion yn alinio â Chynllun Adfer Covid a’r Cynllun 
Economaidd, ac atgoffodd y Cabinet am sawl ymgyrch arall oedd ar ben ffordd, gan gynnwys 
yr Ymgyrch Siopa’n Lleol, oedd oll â’r nod o gynyddu nifer yr ymwelwyd i ganol trefi i gefnogi 
busnesau lleol. 

Page 6



  

 
Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau bod yr eitem hon wedi’i nodi’n fater brys, ac felly nid oedd yn amodol ar 
alw i mewn. 

 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael ei gymeradwyo. Cafodd hyn ei gytuno’n unfrydol drwy bleidleisio’n electronig. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD oherwydd y rhesymau a nodwyd yn Adroddiad y Swyddog, i 
gymeradwyo cynnig i atal costau parcio tan 31 Mawrth 2021, yn amodol ar adolygiad 
pellach bryd hynny. 
 
 

9. MATER EITHRIADOL   
 

Ystyriodd yr Aelodau’r dystysgrif prawf budd y cyhoedd gan y Swyddog Priodol, ac wrth bwyso 
a mesur, penderfynwyd bod budd y cyhoedd o ran cynnal yr eithriad yn fwy na’r budd y cyhoedd 
o ran datgelu’r wybodaeth a 

 
PHENDERFYNWYD yn unol ag Adran 100A(4) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 y dylid 
eithrio’r cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod oherwydd datgeliad tebygol gwybodaeth eithriadol, 
fel y’i nodwyd ym mharagraffau 12 ac 14 Rhan 4 o Atodlen 12A, Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 
1972. 

 
 
10. ESTYNIAD I YMDDEOLIAD HYBLYG OHERWYDD AMGYLCHIADAU EITHRIADOL – TAI 

CAERFFILI  
 
 Roedd yr adroddiad yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i ymestyn Cynllun Ymddeoliad 

Hyblyg y Cyngor ar sail mis i fis, am hyd at 3 mis ar gyfer aelod o staff Tai Caerffili.  
 

Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo’r argymhelliad yn yr 
adroddiad. Drwy godi llaw, cafodd hyn ei gytuno’n unfrydol. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD oherwydd y rhesymau a nodwyd yn adroddiad y Swyddog, y dylid 
cymeradwyo’r argymhellion ym mharagraff 3.1. 
 

 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 15.59pm 

 
 
 

Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd y cofnodion fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a 
wneir yn y cyfarfod a gynhelir ar 13 Ionawr 2021. 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

 

Page 7



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 8



  

 

CABINET 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD ARBENNIG O BELL A GYNHALIWYD AR 
MICROSOFT TEAMS  

DDYDD MERCHER, 16 RHAGFYR 2020 AM 10.30A.M. 
 

YN BRESENNOL: 
 

Cynghorydd P. Marsden (Arweinydd) - Cadeirydd 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

S. Cook (Gofal Cymdeithasol), N. George (Gwastraff a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd), C. Gordon 
(Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), S. Morgan (Economi a Menter), E. Stenner (Perfformiad a 
Gwasanaethau i Gwsmeriaid) ac R. Whiting (Dysgu a Chyflawniad). 
 

Ynghyd â: 
 
 C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol a Thai) ac M.S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro – Cymunedau).  
  

Hefyd yn Bresennol: 
 

R.Kyte (Pennaeth Adfywio a Chynllunio) M. Lloyd (Pennaeth Isadeiledd), K.Peters (Rheolwr 
Polisi Corfforaethol), R. Tranter (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Swyddog Monitro) ac 
C. Evans (Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor).  

 

 
TREFNIADAU RECORDIO A PHLEIDLEISIO 

 
Atgoffodd yr Arweinydd y rhai oedd yn bresennol bod y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffilmio ond na 
fyddai'n cael ei ffrydio'n fyw, fodd bynnag, byddai recordiad ar gael yn dilyn y cyfarfod trwy 
wefan y Cyngor - Cliciwch Yma i Weld  (ychwanegir dolen  pan fydd ar gael ac wedi'i lwytho i 
fyny). Dywedodd y byddai penderfyniadau yn cael eu gwneud ar Microsoft Forms.   

 
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd L. Phipps (Tai ac Eiddo), y 
Cynghorydd J. Ridgewell (Amgylchedd ac Isadeiledd) ac R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol - Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol) ac S. Harris (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Cyllid a Swyddog Adran 151).  

 
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT 
 

Ni chafwyd datganiadau o fuddiant ar ddechrau nac yn ystod y cyfarfod. 
 

 

3. YMATEBION DRAFFT I REOLIADAU CYD-BWYLLGOR CORFFOREDIG Y DE-
DDWYRAIN 2021 A RHEOLIADAU CYNLLUNIO GWLAD A THREF (CYNLLUN 
DATBLYGU STRATEGOL) (CYMRU) 2021. 

Page 9

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4

https://youtu.be/-npuWaZ-eL4


  

 
Rhoddodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Corfforaethol gefndir i'r Cabinet ar gyfer Cyd-
bwyllgorau Corfforedig a'r ymatebion drafft arfaethedig i'r rheoliadau sy'n sefydlu Cyd-
bwyllgorau Corfforedig a'r rheoliadau cysylltiedig sy'n sefydlu'r weithdrefn ar gyfer paratoi 
Cynlluniau Strategol.  Y dyddiad cau ar gyfer dychwelyd pob un o'r ymgynghoriadau yw 4 
Ionawr 2021. 

 
Nododd y Cabinet fod y Rheoliadau yr ymgynghorir â hwy ar hyn o bryd gan Lywodraeth 
Cymru yn gweithredu'r bwriad a nodwyd i greu Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig rhanbarthol i gyflawni 
tair swyddogaeth: 

 Swyddogaeth paratoi, monitro, adolygu a diwygio Cynllun Datblygu Strategol.  Nodir y 
swyddogaethau hyn ym Mharagraff 6 Deddf Cynllunio a Phrynu Gorfodol 2004 (fel y'i 
diwygiwyd gan y Mesur Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru)). 

 Swyddogaeth datblygu Cynllun Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol - dyna swyddogaeth datblygu 
polisïau ar gyfer trafnidiaeth yn, i ac o'r ardal Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig a datblygu 
polisïau ar gyfer gweithredu Strategaeth Drafnidiaeth Cymru. Nodir y swyddogaethau 
hyn yn Neddf Trafnidiaeth 2000. 

 Y swyddogaeth lles economaidd fel y darperir ar ei gyfer yn Rhan 5 y Mesur 
Llywodraeth Leol ac Etholiadau (Cymru). Dyna'r pŵer i wneud unrhyw beth y mae'r 
Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig  yn ei ystyried sy'n debygol o hyrwyddo neu wella lles 
economaidd ei ardal. 

 
Nodwyd y bydd y Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig yn gweithredu dros yr un ardal ddaearyddol ag 
ardal Cytundeb Dinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd, gan gynnwys Parc Cenedlaethol 
Bannau Brycheiniog ar gyfer y swyddogaeth datblygu strategol. Y bwriad yw caniatáu i 
Gynghorau esblygu'r dulliau rhanbarthol cyfredol o ddelio â'r Cytundeb Dinesig a Bargeinion 
Twf yn strwythurau'r Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig. 
 
Mae’r rheoliadau ar gyfer y Cyd-bwyllgorau Corfforedig yn set o reoliadau ‘sefydlu’ a bydd 
‘Rheoliadau Cymhwyso Cyffredinol’ ac arweiniad yn eu dilyn. Gyda'i gilydd, mae'r rheoliadau 
yn galluogi'r Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig: 
 

 Cyflogi pobl (yn uniongyrchol, a thrwy eu benthyca neu drwy secondiad); 

 Gwasanaethau caffael a chomisiynu; 

 Ymrwymo i gontractau, cytundebau lefel gwasanaeth, memoranda dealltwriaeth; 

 Cadw cronfeydd a chyllidebau, talu grantiau (gan gynnwys cadw cyllidebau/cronfeydd 
ar ran Llywodraeth Cymru); 

 Caffael, derbyn, dal, gwaredu a rheoli asedau, tir ac ati; 

 Bod yn berchen neu fod yn rhan o gwmni; 

 Cydweithredu ag eraill, gan gynnwys y prif gynghorau cyfansoddol; 

 Derbyn cymorth i gyflawni ei swyddogaethau/ cyflawni swyddogaethau trwy bobl eraill, 
gan gynnwys ond heb fod yn gyfyngedig i un neu fwy o'r prif gynghorau cyfansoddol; 

 Rhyddhau swyddogaethau trwy gyrff eraill, pobl, staff; 

 Dod ag achos cyfreithiol; 

 Bod â/cael yswiriant (i indemnio ei hun, ei aelodau a'i staff); 

 Ad-dalu treuliau; 
 

Nododd y Cabinet fod Llywodraeth Cymru yn gweld y Cyd-bwyllgorau Corfforedig fel cyfle i 
alinio nifer o ddulliau cydweithredol sydd eisoes mewn statud, gan leihau’r angen ar gyfer (ac 
felly’r costau sy’n gysylltiedig â gwasanaethu) nifer o fyrddau ar wahân. Bydd costau sefydlu, 
sydd i gael eu diffinio, ar gael. Mae'n ofynnol i'r Cyd-bwyllgorau Corfforedig benodi nifer o 
swyddi statudol i'w galluogi i gyflawni'r swyddogaethau; Prif Weithredwr, Swyddog Monitro, 
Prif Swyddog Ariannol, a Phrif Swyddog Llywodraethu. Mae'r ddogfen ymgynghori a'r asesiad 
effaith reoleiddiol yn awgrymu y gallai staffio eraill gael ei ystyried ar gyfer swyddogaethau 
cyllid, cyfreithiol, AD, gweinyddol a chyfleusterau a staffio penodol ar gyfer datblygu strategol 
a chynllunio rhanbarthol e.e. Pennaeth Cynllunio Strategol a Phennaeth Trafnidiaeth ynghyd 

Page 10



  

â'u timau. Mae staff naill ai'n cael eu cyflogi'n uniongyrchol neu eu benthyca/yn cael 
secondiad gan y cynghorau cyfansoddol. 
 
Nodwyd bod yn rhaid i Gyd-bwyllgorau Corfforedig gynnal eu Cyfarfod Cyffredinol Blynyddol 
cyntaf cyn diwedd Medi 2021 a rhaid iddynt ddyblygu trefniadau llywodraeth leol ar gyfer 
llywodraethu gyda Phwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu a Phwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio.  
Byddant yn destun trefniadau archwilio a chyfrifeg tebyg i awdurdodau lleol. 
 
Ymgynghorir ar set gysylltiedig o Reoliadau sy'n diffinio sut y mae'n rhaid paratoi'r Cynllun 
Datblygu Strategol rhanbarthol ar yr un pryd.  Mae'r ymateb drafft i'r rhain hefyd wedi'i atodi. 

 
  Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a chafwyd trafodaeth. 
 
 Trafododd Aelodau'r Cabinet yr adroddiad yn helaeth, gan ofyn am eglurhad ar agweddau ar 

yr adroddiad, a ddarparwyd gan y Swyddogion.   
 
 Wrth drafod yr ymgynghoriad, gofynnodd Aelod Cabinet am ychwanegu'r broses lywodraethu 

ar gyfer gwneud penderfyniadau trwy'r Pwyllgorau Craffu a'r Cabinet yn ymateb yr 
ymgynghoriad.  Cytunodd swyddogion y bydd geiriad yn cael ei gytuno a'i gynnwys yn ymateb 
yr ymgynghoriad. 

 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaeth, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn 
cael ei gymeradwyo.  Trwy’r system pleidleisio electronig, cytunwyd ar hyn yn unfrydol. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD, am y rhesymau a gynhwysir yn Adroddiad y Swyddog, y dylid nodi 
cynnwys yr adroddiad a chymeradwyo'r ymatebion drafft atodol. 

 
 

 
Terfynwyd y cyfarfod am 10.49am. 

 
 
 

Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd ei fod yn gofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a wneir 
yn y cyfarfod a gynhelir ar 13 Ionawr, 2021. 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

Page 11



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 12



Dyddiad Cabinet Teitl Materion Allweddol Awdur Aelod Cabinet

13/01/21 10:30

Mabwysiadu polisi gwerthu 

gorfodol

Hysbysu Aelodau, a cheisio cymeradwyaeth 

ar gyfer mabwysiadu Polisi Gwerthu Gorfodol.   

Mae hwn yn fecanwaith ar gyfer dod ag 

anheddau problemus, hirdymor gwag yn y 

sector preifat, eiddo masnachol diffaith a thir 

yn ôl at ddefnydd buddiol. Dallimore, Allan; Cyng. Morgan, Sean;

13/01/21 10:30 Adroddiad parcio ceir

Adolygiad o feysydd parcio sy'n eiddo i'r 

Cyngor a chynigion gweithredol yn y dyfodol.  Forbes-Thompson, Cath; Cyng. Ridgewell, John;

13/01/21 10:30

Dyfarniad Cyflog Athrawon 

2020/21

Rhoi cynnig i'r Cabinet i ariannu'r diffyg 

gweddilliol mewn cyllid ar gyfer dyfarniad 

cyflog athrawon 2020/21.  

 

Harris, Stephen 

R;Southcombe, Jane; Cyng. Stenner, Eluned;

13/01/21 10:30

Cynigion Cyllideb Drafft ar 

gyfer 2021/22

Cyflwyno manylion y cynigion cyllideb drafft 

ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2021/22 i'r 

Cabinet. Harris, Stephen R Cyng. Stenner, Eluned;

27/01/21 10:30

Pentrebane Street, Caerffili – 

Defnydd o Bwerau'r 

Gorchymyn Prynu Gorfodol

Diweddaru'r Cabinet ar ddefnyddio 

Gorchymyn Prynu Gorfodol (CPO) i hwyluso 

ailddatblygu ochr ddeheuol Pentrebane 

Street, Caerffili.  Mae'r adroddiad hwn hefyd 

yn gofyn am ddyrannu hyd at £200,000 i 

brosiect ailddatblygu Pentrebane Street i 

dalu'r costau sy'n gysylltiedig â'r broses 

Gorchymyn Prynu Gorfodol ac i hwyluso gyda 

chaffael eiddo dan berchnogaeth breifat.  Dallimore, Allan; Cyng. Morgan, Sean;

27/01/21 10:30 Cyllid Cynllun Bysiau Brys 2  

Cael cytundeb y Sector Cyhoeddus ar gyfer 

cyllid cynllun bysiau brys gyda gweithredwyr 

tan Orffennaf 2022.

Williams, Mark S;Lloyd, 

Marcus Cyng. Ridgewell, John;

P
age 13

E
item

 A
r Y

r A
genda 5



27/01/21 10:30

Sefyllfa monitro cyllideb yr 

awdurdod cyfan ar gyfer 

2020/21

Rhoi diweddariad i'r Cabinet ar y sefyllfa 

alldro rhagamcanol ar gyfer blwyddyn 

ariannol 2020/21.  Harris, Stephen R; Cyng. Stenner, Eluned;

27/01/21 11:30

Adroddiad blynyddol a 

datganiad o gyfrifon Sefydliad 

y Glowyr Coed Duon 2019/20

Cynghori’r Cabinet fel Ymddiriedolwyr 

Sefydliad y Glowyr, Coed Duon, am y 

gweithgareddau gweithredol a sefyllfa 

ariannol Sefydliad y Glowyr, Coed Duon, ar 

gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol sy'n diweddu 31 

Mawrth 2020. Kyte, Rhian; Cyng. Morgan, Sean;

P
age 14



 
CABINET – 13TH JANUARY 2021 

 
SUBJECT: CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL CAR PARKS 

TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

 

 

1. PURPOSE 
 

1.1 The attached report was considered by the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
(Environment & Sustainability and Housing & Regeneration) on 15th December 
2020. The report outlined the findings of the Caerphilly County Borough Car 
Parks Task and Finish Group and the recommendation supported by the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee. To seek consideration support by Cabinet on 13th January 
2021. 

 
2        SCRUTINY COMMITTEE COMMENTS  
 
2.1  This report attached at Appendix 1 outlines the findings and recommendations of 

the joint scrutiny task and finish group established to consider car parks in the 
Caerphilly county borough. This was considered and debated by the Joint 
Scrutiny committee who have supported some of the recommendations as 
shown in section 3, other recommendations by the task and finish group were 
either deferred or not supported.  

 
2.2 The joint scrutiny committee were supportive of a same hourly rate at all car 

parks across the county borough. There was a suggestion that this should be the 
same as the 70p starting tariff which is mostly the same across most car parks 
with the exception of Oakfield street in Ystrad Mynach and The Twyn in 
Caerphilly, these are shown in appendix 1of the report from the task and finish 
group. Members were supportive of the free use of car parks close to schools for 
a limited time to relieve congestion and improve safety. In addition the joint 
scrutiny committee endorsed the removal of parking charges at the 5 country 
parks and agreed that Cwmcarn be excluded and continue to charge for parking. 

 
2.3 There were some recommendations that the joint scrutiny committee did not 

support, these included offering reduced parking permits for local businesses as 
it was felt that the existing reduced permits were sufficient. Members did not 
support the introduction of charges at park and ride car parks due to concerns 
that this would result in increased parking in residential areas. Finally the joint 
scrutiny committee did not support that the surplus car park income be ring 
fenced solely for improvement of car parks due to the potential impact upon 

Page 15

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



budget available to the Infrastructure Department for maintenance in other 
areas, such as main roads.  

 
2.4 The joint scrutiny committee agreed that some of the recommendations should 

be deferred until the outcome and impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is known. 
These refer to removal of Sunday charges at the Twyn in Caerphilly, non-
enforcement of charges on St Davids Day and introducing charges at free car 
parks. There were two recommendations that were deferred for a report to return 
to the relevant scrutiny committee on zoning and residential parking areas. The 
recommendation regarding ceasing locking of the two car parks at night in 
Blackwood was also deferred for further discussion with ward members when 
appropriate. Members also agreed to remove the recommendation on extending 
free parking across the county borough due to the Covid-19 pandemic, as that 
had already been agreed by Cabinet on 9th December 2020.  

 
2.5 Members sought an update on the replacement of pay and display payment 

machines and were advised that more modern machines would allow card 
payments etc. and there is circa 50% of the funding already available (£170,000 
via WG TRI grant). Members agreed to make an additional recommendation to 
Cabinet asking that the council proceed with the purchase of the new machines.  

 
 

3 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Following consideration of the findings and recommendations of the Task and 

Finish Group, and having agreed the inclusion of an additional recommendation, 
the Scrutiny Committee supported the following recommendations and 
recommended, by the majority present to Cabinet that: 

 
3.2 The current hourly tariffs at publicly available pay and display highway owned car 

parks be standardised across the county borough for long term and short-term 
parking respectively.  It is suggested that charges are set at a current lower level. 

 
3.3 Parking charges at the 5 country parks agreed in 2014 be removed in order to 

recognise the significant health benefits to residents. 
 
3.4 Where there are car parks in close proximity to schools, that are having parking 

issues during school drop off and pick up times, Officers be given discretion to 
allow a free parking concession to parents/carers for a limited time and in 
consultation with local ward members. 

 
3.5 The current approach to the use of car parks for trading and events be allowed to 

continue and Officers be permitted to continue to use discretion in respect of 
applications that have community benefit. 

 
3.6 Opportunities to improve existing CCTV be explored where grant funding or 

match funding is available. 
 
3.7 A programme to upgrade pay and display machines across the county borough 

be agreed and implemented. 
  
Author:  Catherine Forbes-Thompson, Scrutiny Manager – forbecl@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 
Appendix: Report to Joint Scrutiny Committee 15th December 2020 – Agenda Item 3 

Page 16



 
 
 

JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
(ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILTY SCRUTINY AND  

HOUSING & REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEES)  
– 15TH DECEMBER 2020 

 
 

SUBJECT:     CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL CAR PARKS 
TASK AND FINISH GROUP 

 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 This report seeks to inform a joint meeting of the Environment and Sustainability and 

the Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committees of the findings of the joint task 
and finish group that was established to review car parks managed by Caerphilly 
County Borough Council. The joint scrutiny committee is asked to consider the 
recommendations of the review group and determine its recommendations to 
Cabinet.   

 
 

2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 This report outlines the findings and recommendations of the joint scrutiny task and 

finish group established to consider car parks in the Caerphilly county borough. The 
review group agreed its terms of reference as ‘to determine if the current strategy and 
regime for the management and operation of the Councils Highway owned off-street 
car parks is still appropriate and what alternative options should be considered in 
future.’  

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The Environment and Sustainability and Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny 

Committees are asked to consider the findings of the Caerphilly County Borough 
Council Car Parks Task and Finish Group. The scrutiny committees are asked to 
consider the following recommendations and make their recommendations to Cabinet. 

 
3.2  Current hourly tariffs at pay and display highway owned car parks available for the 

public should be standardised across county borough for long term and short-term 
parking respectively it is suggested that charges are set at a current lower level. 

Appendix  

Page 17



 
3.3 To remove the parking charges at the 5 country parks agreed in 2014 in order to 

recognise the significant health benefits to residents 
 
3.4 Caerphilly County Borough offer local businesses reduced charge parking permits for 

their staff to park in car parks, therefore officers to investigate most appropriate car 
parks where this could be offered, with the aim to reduce use of central car parks by 
workers and free them up for visitors/shoppers. 

 
3.5 Where there are car parks in close proximity to schools, that are having parking issues 

during school drop off and pick up times, officers are given discretion to allow a free 
parking concession to parents/carers for a limited time and in consultation with local 
ward members. 

 
 3.6 Remove Sunday parking charges at Twyn Car park on Sundays – this has been an 

historical arrangement that is no longer required and will provide parity. 
 
 3.7 That the council not enforce car park charges on St David’s day. 
 
 3.8 That Cabinet review their position on not charging at Park and Ride in view of the costs 

to maintain these car parks. 
 
3.9 That consideration of charging at free car parks is deferred and reviewed at a later 

date once the coronavirus is no longer having an impact on people’s ability to shop 
and socialise freely in the county borough. 

 
3.10 That priority is given in the county wide review for consideration of zoning of residential 

parking areas of main towns.   
 
3.11 That the criteria for residential parking permit areas is reviewed to offer a more flexible 

approach that takes into account areas outside of principal towns where customer 
parking to access local businesses impacts on residential areas. 

 
3.12 That the current non-enforcement of parking charges at council owned car parks is 

extended after 31st December 2020 for three months and then reviewed to consider if 
the impact of covid-19 on town centres is ongoing at that time. 

 
3.13 That the current approach to the use of car parks for trading and events be allowed to 

continue and officers are permitted to continue to use discretion in respect of 
applications that have community benefit. 

 
3.14 That consideration should be given to cease locking the car parks at Thorncombe 3 

and Wesley Road Blackwood during the night upon the retirement of the member of 
staff.  To be done in consultation with local ward members. If night-time locking ends 
the impact should be monitored and options to install additional CCTV and/or upgrade 
the quality are explored if required. 

 
3.15 All surplus income generated from parking charges to be ring fenced for maintenance 

and improvement of car parks, through a planned maintenance programme, including 
improved directional signage and lighting improvements. 

 
3.16 That opportunities to improve existing CCTV be explored where grant funding or match 

funding is available. 
 
 

Page 18



4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 These recommendations have been suggested to improve the car park provision 

across the county borough. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The review of council owned car parks was first considered by the Regeneration and 

Environment Scrutiny Committee at the meeting held on 29th March 2016. The 
scrutiny committee considered a scoping report that set out a proposed review of the 
operation and management of the council car parks and the potential for future 
changes to the parking regime and parking tariffs. A member task and finish group 
was subsequently established and was made up of the following Members; 

 
Councillor L Aldworth 
Councillor J Bevan 
Councillor N Dix - Chair 
Councillor C Elsbury 
Councillor R Gough – Vice Chair 
 
The scrutiny committee were also informed that because of the size of the group 
there were instances where only three members attended meetings. Therefore, 
Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny Committee were asked to nominate 
additional members to the group. The additional nominees were: 
 
Councillor M Adams 
Councillor L Harding – subsequently withdrew. 
Councillor D Price 
 

  5.2 The task and finish group completed a significant amount of work carrying out site 
visits to main car parks and meeting with representatives from Community and Town 
Councils as well as business representatives. However, with the anticipated 
implementation of Civil Parking Enforcement the group felt that any 
recommendations they might make should be with the benefit of CPE already in 
place in order to deal with any parking infringements that may result from changes. 
Therefore, the group agreed to report to the Regeneration and Environment Scrutiny 
Committee with their findings at that time and set out a few options. The scrutiny 
committee agreed at its meeting on 4th July 2017 to revisit the task and finish group 
later once civil enforcement was determined and review the terms of reference 
accordingly. 

 
 5.3 A further report was then considered by the Environment and Sustainability Scrutiny 

Committee on 29th October 2019 giving an update on Civil Parking Enforcement and 
asking if the scrutiny committee wished to reconvene the car park task and finish 
group, Members agreed to re-establish but also wished to invite the Housing and 
Regeneration Scrutiny committee to establish it as a joint task and finish group, the 
Housing and Regeneration scrutiny committee agreed at the meeting held on 26th 
November 2019. 

 
 5.4 The Members of both Environment and Sustainability and Housing and Regeneration 

Scrutiny Committees were subsequently contacted on 28th November 2019 and on 
7th January 2020 asking for expressions of interest to join the task and finish group. 
The task and finish group was then established and made up of the following 
Members: 

Page 19



 
 Councillor J Ridgewell 

Councillor R Gough - Chair 
Councillor C Elsbury 
Councillor Tom Williams 
Councillor Denver Preece - Vice-Chair 
Councillor Lindsey Harding 
Councillor John Roberts 

 
5.5 The group met for the first time on 21st February 2020 but subsequently Councillor J. 

Ridgewell became the Cabinet Member for Environment & Infrastructure and was 
invited as an observer at the remaining meetings. The Independents group also 
asked that one of their group join in July 2020 and subsequently Councillor B. Owen 
was invited to the meetings from September 2020 alongside Councillor N. Dix who 
was invited as an observer/witness because of his interest and previous involvement.  

   
  5.6 The group held its first meeting on 21st February 2020 to review the background to 

the previous work of the task and finish group and agree the terms of reference and 
methodology. The terms of reference agreed were ‘to determine if the current 
strategy and regime for the management and operation of the Councils Highway 
owned off-street car parks is still appropriate and what alternative options should be 
considered in future.’ The group also agreed to write to Community and Town 
Councils who had submitted their views previously to allow them the opportunity to 
update their submissions. Members also agreed to carry out site visits to familiarise 
themselves with the car parks, particularly because 5 Members were not on the 
original group. However, following this meeting and before the site visits could be 
organised the Coronavirus pandemic lockdown was implemented, with all meetings 
cancelled. The next meeting of the group was held on 21st September 2020, with 
further meetings held on 14th October and 28th October 2020.  

 
  5.7 The group reviewed the previous reports considered by the group and responses 

from the Community and Town Councils at the 21st September meeting and agreed 
to consider each issue that had been identified and draw their conclusions. Members 
also agreed to review car park charges at the 5 country parks where charging was 
introduced in 2014 (Cwmcarn already charged for parking prior to this) in their 
deliberations. The group also considered the recent impact of non -enforcement of 
car parking fees across the county borough because of the coronavirus pandemic. 

 
 Car Parks 
 
 5.8 The review group was provided with a list of all car parks (appendix 1), the tariffs 

charged for pay and display (appendix 2), for which the group agreed to only 
consider car parks with 25 or more spaces. The group agreed to contact Town and 
Community Councils to inform them that the group had been established to outline 
the terms of reference and invite them to submit their views and attend a meeting of 
the group to give evidence.  

  
 5.9 The review group received a variety of responses during its consultation on car 

parks, a summary of the views expressed is outlined below: 
 
 Argoed Community Council – There should be consistency across the county 

borough, all free or all charging. 
 
 Bargoed Town Council  – Strongly stated that the introduction of charges at their free 

car parks would have a detrimental impact on the Town centre which is struggling. 

Page 20



People will go elsewhere or park in side streets, it will have a negative impact on low 
paid shop workers. The regeneration hasn’t been fully completed and they were told 
no parking charges would be introduced until it was complete. 

 
 Blackwood Town Council – In 2017 the town council highlighted that 64% of annual 

car park income is generated by Blackwood and didn’t feel that the town benefitted 
and mentioned that the town council has recently taken over floral displays in the 
summer. The town council felt that other towns were treated far better and if charges 
were introduced in line with Blackwood the level of charges could be reduced. 
Suggested short term free parking at the Bus Station Car park to assist people using 
the Library & Cash office and 2 hours free parking at Christmas. In 2020 the town 
council welcomed the free parking during the pandemic.  

 
Caerphilly Town Council – asked that the council consider the introduction of free 
parking allowances for schools during drop off and pick up hours. To also consider 
enhanced lighting or the provision of CCTV coverage at car parks for those parking 
late at night and safer routes to and from car parks. 
 
Gelligaer Community Council - Ystrad Mynach area – limited car parking serving a 
town with 2 primary schools and a secondary school, a hospital and college. There 
are issues with traffic volume and limited park and ride capacity causing commuters 
to park in residential areas. Ask the council to consider more car park spaces and 
some free parking hours agreed with giving free parking for parents taking children to 
school. Also asked if there could be a buffer after ticket has expired before penalty is 
given.  
 
Gelligaer Community Council – Hengoed & Pengam area - strongly opposed the 
introduction of any charges to Park and Ride Car parks.  This essential provision 
takes cars away from residential areas and congested town and city centres and the 
impositions of a charge would cause an unfair and unreasonable burden on 
commuters and would result in additional cars on the road, illegal parking and 
increased pollution. The car park is in close proximity to a well-used community 
centre and provides a safe parking environment for its users.  Hengoed park and ride 
is near to the community centre so if a charge is introduced to park and rides a 
request is made that a concession to the centre users after 4.30pm. 
 
Llanbradach & Pwllypant Community Council - The continuation of free parking be 
upheld and that the first hour free of charge be implemented in car parks in Ystrad 
Mynach and other towns to fully support our highstreets. Improved car parking 
signage and free park & ride parking for sustainability and to encourage the use of 
public transport. 
 
Risca Town Council – the current provision be maintained, and that consideration be 
given to improving directional signage to the car parks. Parking required for the 
school and local businesses. Highlighted parking on streets and vehicles using 
pavements, which is very dangerous, better road safety measures required. 

 
 Pay and Display Car Parks 
 
 5.10 The group were advised that pay and display car parks are located in the main towns 

of Bargoed, Blackwood, Caerphilly and Ystrad Mynach. Parking tariffs are shown at 
appendix 2. The group were advised that differences apply for various reasons. In 
Ystrad Mynach the tariff is set at the lowest rate because it is the only car park 
available with the first hour set at 60p up to a daily charge of £2,20. The Twyn in 
Caerphilly is in high demand because of its location, hence has the highest rate 

Page 21



which is to encourage turnover and starts at 80p for the first hour up to £6.20 daily 
charge. Some car parks allow a weekly charge £10 (£8.50 Ystrad Mynach), a 
quarterly charge £105 and an annual charge £385, with some lower annual rates 
offered to residents in Blackwood at £83. 

 
 5.11 Members felt that where charging at car parks is currently in place that there should 

be parity across the county borough, so that residents can feel assured that everyone 
makes the same payment.  Members noted Welsh Government Research found that 
visitors were more interested in available spaces, traffic flow, signage to direct them 
to car parks and the vibrancy of the towns. Therefore, there is a need to retain pay 
and display to support the provision but on a fairer basis across the county borough. 
There was no support to offer an initial free parking period as it was felt that this 
would be used by people working in towns and not encourage visitors and shoppers. 

 
 Country Parks  
 
 5.12 Charges at Country Parks were introduced following a report to Cabinet in July 2014. 

The charges were introduced at the following country parks, Bargoed Woodland 
park; Parc Cwm Darran; Parc Penallta; Pen-y-Fan Pond; Sirhowy Valley Country 
Park. Cwmcarn already charged for parking before 2014 and because of the level of 
visitors and need to ensure turnover of spaces Members agreed not to include 
Cwmcarn in their review.  Charges at Country Parks are £1.00 for up to 2 hours and 
a daily fee of £3.00. Season tickets are available at all of our country parks and 
Cwmcarn Forest, and currently cost £50 for an Annual Season Ticket and £25 for a 
Half Season Ticket. The review group considered the projected income when the car 
parking fees were introduced in 2014, when it was anticipated that based on the 
existing visitor numbers it was estimated that an annual income of £85,000 would 
likely be generated. However, it was acknowledged that the exact level of income 
would not be known until the scheme became operational. 

 
 5.13 The group reviewed the actual income generated since 2016 (appendix 3) and the 

total income for the 5 country parks is £274,737 over a 6-year period. There has 
been no income in 2020/21 as there has been no charging due to Covid 19. 
However, including Cwmcarn the total income has been £729,729 showing that 
Cwmcarn generates the most, followed by Pen-y-fan Pond. When comparing the full 
years (2015/16 to 2019/20) since the charges were introduced the average income 
for the 5 country parks is £49,626 per annum.  

  
5.14 Members discussed the benefit to the public in accessing green spaces during the 

current pandemic and agreed that the relative low income generated per annum for 
the 5 country parks against the benefits to peoples mental and physical wellbeing 
were not justified. Reference was made to a recent Welsh Government publication 
on the importance of public access to open green spaces to benefit health.  

 
5.15 It was agreed that the charges at the 5 country parks, car parks should be ended but 

retain the charges at Cwmcarn which has high visitor numbers and would need to 
control parking use and turnover through charging. 

  
 Parking by staff employed in local businesses 
 
5.16 The task and finish group had received consultation responses from Bargoed Town 

Council highlighting that many people working in towns are often low paid and 
charging for car parking would have an adverse effect by dispersing car parking into 
residential areas. In Caerphilly where there are pay and display car parks workers 
are often parking in residential areas and returning and moving their cars during the 

Page 22



day to avoid enforcement action.  There are also towns where some pay and display 
car parks are underutilised because they are less convenient, and it was suggested 
that these could be offered to workers in towns at reduced rates.  

 
5.17 Members also received feedback that people employed in Blackwood and Caerphilly 

towns are currently using the central and most convenient car parks since free 
parking has been introduced since the coronavirus pandemic. This has resulted in 
spaces occupied all day from early morning with little turnover of spaces thereby 
preventing other visitors from using the car parks.   

 
 School Parking 
 
5.18 Members considered the feedback from Caerphilly Town Council and agreed that the 

current informal concession at Crescent Road Car Park in Caerphilly to allow Parents 
and Carers to park for a short period of time whilst dropping off children and picking 
them up is useful in reducing congestion. There are still people choosing to park 
close to the school but it was recognised that without this concession the situation 
would be much worse. Members were also advised that Libanus School in 
Blackwood is taking part in an exclusion zone so parents and carers are using the 
current offer for free parking in car parks close to the school and there is concern that 
the once free parking ends that there may be issues with the exclusion zone. 

 
 Sunday Parking 
 
5.18 During the consultation carried out with Town and Community Councils the group 

were asked to consider allowing free parking at the Twyn car park in Caerphilly on 
Remembrance Sunday. Members were inclined to agree that this was a reasonable 
request. It was subsequently identified during discussion that this is the only car park 
in the county borough to charge on Sundays and it appears to be an historical matter. 
Members were advised that to remove this charge altogether would have no 
significant adverse impact. Therefore, in order to provide parity and in line with the 
Members views of consistency the group agreed that charges should no longer be 
applicable at the Twyn car park on Sundays.  
 
Free parking concessions 
 

5.19 Following discussion about the Twyn Members considered if the Council could offer 
free car parking on St David’s day across the whole county borough. It was agreed 
that this would be best done by a general message through Communications as 
opposed to changing signage and covering payment machines as this would have 
resource and time implications.   

 
 Park and Ride 
 
5.20 During the discussion on the costs to maintain car parks such as maintenance, 

energy and NNDR it was clarified that the council is responsible for all costs 
associated with maintaining and running park and ride car parks. Members 
expressed concerns that residents paying car park fees and using our towns were 
effectively subsidising free parking for those travelling to Cardiff on the train. The 
group were advised that Welsh Government has indicated that it is interested in 
having a dialogue with regional transport bodies on the possibility of introducing 
charges to P&R car parks. This is something they will consider as part of developing 
their P&R strategy.  Members considered that a small charge would be reasonable 
and agreed to suggest that Cabinet consider the introduction of a small charge. 

 

Page 23



 Free Car Parks 
 
5.21 The previous task and finish group in 2016/17 were able to visit a number of car 

parks in the main towns and villages giving the members an opportunity to see the 
condition of the car parks and locations. Members also took into account the views 
submitted by Community and Town Councils as well as some business 
representatives. The views summarised in 5.9 of this report show that concerns 
regarding parity and perceived fairness, alongside provisions for local workers as 
impact on the high street were submitted.  

 
5.22 The group were provided with research reports commissioned by Welsh Government 

‘Assessing the Impact of Car Parking Charges on Town Centre Footfall – 2015’ and 
some of the findings are highlighted below: 

 
 Charging for car parking is a complex issue. It is only one aspect of a complex 

interplay of factors influencing willingness to travel by car, time and money spent, 
and business activity in town centres. It is very difficult to separate the influence of 
car parking charges from other factors. 

 
 Whilst a ‘blanket’ free parking strategy has been suggested to encourage more car 

park users, these were generally found not to benefit target visitors (for example, the 
spaces were used primarily by town centre workers who were taking up the spaces 
all day, rather than shoppers) and consequently had an unexpectedly negative 
impact on footfall 

 
 Beyond anecdote, there is very little published evidence which links changes in car 

park charges to changes in town centre footfall. Local Authorities and other 
stakeholders similarly rely mostly on anecdote when relating car park charges to 
footfall. However, their feedback does suggest that a relationship exists. 

 
 Visitors to town centres suggested that car park charges impact on how long they 

remain in the centre and, consequently, how much they spend whilst there. However, 
the general availability of spaces is felt by visitors to be more important than cost in 
their overall decision about visiting. Traffic flow and parking signage are felt by 
visitors to have the same, if not greater, effect on their decision to visit the town 
centre, how long they spend there, and how much money they spend. 

 
5.23 Welsh Government has also commissioned a report – Research into Car Parking 

Charging Strategies – 2017. This report found that there are contrasting views on the 
importance of completely free car parking and there was insufficient evidence on the 
relationship between car park charging and town centre footfall. The report did look 
at two case studies within Wales mentioned in the report in 5.22 above in respect of 
Wrexham and Denbighshire county which both implemented completely free all day 
parking for a period of time and measured the impact on usage and footfall. In 
Denbighshire County, similarly to Wrexham, the free all day car parking was taken up 
by workers in the town rather than visitors. 

 
5.24 There were a variety of viewpoints expressed by members of the group on whether 

to consider charging at car parks that are currently free to use. One member stated 
that all car parks should charge, and it should be the same across the county 
borough. Another member felt it was important to agree in the first instance why 
charging would be imposed and was it to raise income to maintain the car parks or to 
encourage turnover. If there is no turnover issue because of limited footfall and a 
high number of available spaces, imposing a charge would have an adverse impact 
particularly where the Town is struggling. Another Member felt that because of the 

Page 24



impact of Covid-19 upon Towns and footfall that any changes should wait until the 
coronavirus is no longer having an impact. Members received a copy of the footfall 
figures for the main towns over the past few years and compared the same three 
months over the previous three years, as outlined in the table below:  

  

Month Bargoed Blackwood Caerphilly Newbridge Risca  Ystrad 
Mynach 

Apr 18 44681 134320 106805 30164 33076 60678 

Aug 18 49924 149020 115388 33371 35324 52810 

Dec 18 37609 182377 109144 52969 32240 53904 

Apr 19 46500 130453 98607 65901 32207 57738 

Aug 19 50912 139405 106797 67330 32712 48571 

Dec 19 40696 153988 107411 53069 30987 52447 

Apr 20 13943 29810 32449 21481 16947 23838 

Aug 20 35040 82943 81645 26866 22561 37169 

 
5.25 A Member provided a personal account that he had recently visited Blackwood just 

before the new national lockdown was due to start. He informed the group that 
people were queuing to get into car parks which are all currently free. However other 
Members stated that free car parks in Bargoed and Risca are never full and there is 
no turnover issue.  There was some discussion on the planned site visits that were 
cancelled in March 2020, due to the coronavirus lockdown, and whether it was 
possible to arrange them before deciding on free car parks. Members agreed it was 
difficult to make a recommendation until they had visited the free car parks which is 
not possible at the present time. The group also took into account the severe impact 
of the coronavirus on Towns at the present time. Therefore, it was agreed to defer 
making any recommendation until the impact of the pandemic has receded.  

 
 Zoned Parking 
 
5.26 Members discussed parking in side streets in Caerphilly with limited times of 1 or 2 

hours which are often used by people who work in the town to park for free. This 
often results in them returning to their cars during the day in order to move their cars 
to another free space nearby, thereby frustrating the purpose of the limited waiting 
areas. Members asked if zoning certain areas to prevent this could be considered 
and were advised that zoning is already used and may be applicable, but each 
situation would need to be considered on its merits. Priorities for county wide traffic 
regulation order reviews had already been agreed with Members and this includes 
looking at residential parking areas. Each review will engage with local ward 
members in order to decide what restrictions are most appropriate for their areas.  

 
5.27 Members agreed it would be useful to look at zoning across the main towns, to make 

it consistent and encourage use of car parks and if agreed this will link into the 
recommendation to offer reduced parking permits for certain car parks to employees 
of local businesses. 

 
 Residential Parking 
 
5.28 The group considered the application of the policy criteria for resident parking areas. 

The residents’ parking scheme has mainly been implemented in principal town 
centres, and the policy criteria stipulates that any location can be considered 
provided that they are immediately adjacent to major shopping areas, large 
employment sites, main transport interchanges and colleges.  Residents parking 
schemes are intended to respond to residents’ concerns in circumstances where 

Page 25



there is limited available on-street parking (and generally no available off-street 
parking) that is under pressure from non-residential parking.  

 
5.29 Members gave examples where residents parking is impacted by local businesses 

attracting customers who then park in streets where they could use nearby car parks. 
However, because these areas are not considered a principal town and/or does not 
meet the current criteria, residents parking is not considered. The group agreed that 
they would like to see the criteria reviewed and more responsive to the needs of 
areas. 

 
 Temporary Free Parking - Covid-19 
 
5.30 The current administration implemented free car parking across the county borough 

at the beginning of the coronavirus lockdown. This is due to end on 31st December 
2020 and car parking charges are due to be reinstated in January 2021. The group 
considered this and agreed that it was evident during the discussion on town centres 
and footfall that areas have seen a considerable reduction in visitors, and this is likely 
to have an impact into the new year and beyond.   

 
5.31 The group also heard that there have been complaints from businesses in Blackwood 

and Caerphilly that central car parks are being filled early and all day, probably by 
people working in the towns, thereby preventing visitors from parking in those 
locations. Options such as charging up until 10am followed by free parking 
afterwards were discussed. The group agreed that they would like to see free car 
parking extended beyond 31st December 2020. 

 
 Use of Car Parks for Trading and Events 
 
5.32 Members discussed the use of car parks for other purposes other than parking. The 

group were advised that trading in car parks is not allowed but there are some 
exceptions for community benefit. Examples where provided of trading such as a 
butcher’s van at Rhymney Car Park, a mobile bank or a cancer screening at other 
car parks. Commercial users would be expected to pay a charge whereas if it is of 
community benefit it would be free of charge.  Members agreed that the current 
approach should continue, and officers be allowed to use discretion in respect of 
what is community benefit and which car parks are suitable.   
 
Night Closure at Thorncombe 3 and Wesley Road Blackwood 
 

5.33 Members were advised that at present a long-standing arrangement has been in 
place where the car parks at Thorncombe 3 and Wesley road car parks in Blackwood 
are locked at night. This work is carried out by one member of staff who may retire in 
the foreseeable future. Members asked if there were any particular issues that 
required the car park to be closed at night and were advised that it appears to be an 
historical arrangement. The group agreed that consideration should be given to 
cease locking these car parks at night when this staff member retires but the local 
ward members should be consulted alongside monitoring and options to install CCTV 
explored. 

 
 Income and Maintenance 
 
5.34 The Group were advised that the council must pay considerable amounts to maintain 

and manage car parks, there are charges for energy, NNDR and enforcement to be 
recouped. The group received details of income and costs for pay and display car 
parks which shows the surplus income, detailed in Appendix 4. 1. The group were 

Page 26



mindful that should the recommendations to reduce car parking tariffs to the lowest 
rate and removal of charging on a Sunday in the Twyn will have an impact on 
income. However, should Cabinet agree to implement fees for park and ride car 
parks and also encourage a permit scheme for town centre workers (thereby 
encouraging use of the under used car parks) that will go towards offsetting some of 
this reduced income. 

 
5.35 Members felt that the purpose for charging in car parks should be to support the 

service and maintain the car parks. There were specific areas that could improve the 
current provision such as improved lighting and directional signage, that were 
identified by consultees which would make car parks more user friendly.  

 
5.36 The group were interested to discover what maintenance inspections are carried out 

and were advised that only ad hoc responsive inspections are undertaken, and a 
formal asset management plan has yet to be completed. Members were keen to see 
a planned maintenance programme be developed that is informed by a condition 
survey instead of relying upon a reactive maintenance provision. 

 
 CCTV 
 
5.37 Members were advised that CCTV is installed at some car parks and varies in 

quality. Not all pay and display car parks have CCTV however there are constraints 
in respect of the capacity of the CCTV control room which would impact if additional 
CCTV were to be considered. In some instances, the quality of the CCTV is limited 
by the broadband bandwidth. The group would want to see CCTV retained where it is 
of good quality and agreed that it can act as a deterrent and provides reassurance. 
Members would like to see opportunities to improve CCTV provision where it is poor 
by exploring grant opportunities and by providing match funding from council 
budgets. 

 

5.38 Conclusions   

The task and finish group considered a wide range of issues across the county 
borough car parks and were mindful of the consultation responses received. 
Members have drawn conclusions in respect of parity on parking charges, removing 
charges at country parks and offering reduced permits to workers. The group felt that 
charging on a Sunday at the Twyn should be ended and be free at all car parks on St 
Davids Day would be a generous concession by the council. The group considered 
the difficulty of congestion around schools and would like to see opportunities to 
allow limited free parking in nearby car parks explored.  

There were strong views that there should be some charge for park and ride car 
parks to offset the costs incurred by the Council to maintain them. The group felt that 
at the present time because of the impact of the coronavirus that any 
recommendations on free car parks should be deferred because of the impact upon 
footfall in town centres. The group also felt hat the temporary offer of free parking at 
all car parks should be extended whilst the pandemic is ongoing. 

There were some specific issues that the group were asked to provide a view, on 
trading and events at car parks and night closure at Thorncombe 3 and Wesley Road 
car parks in Blackwood.  

Page 27



The group considered the impact of parking upon residential areas by people working 
in the area and visiting local businesses and have made suggestions in respect of 
zoned parking and a review of the criteria for residential parking.  

Finally, having listened to feedback in respect of a need to improve directional signs 
and lighting and noting that there is no comprehensive condition survey. The group 
would like to see a condition survey carried out at all car parks and a planned 
maintenance programme established. The group agreed that surplus income from 
parking fees should be ringfenced to support this maintenance programme. The 
group were also supportive of improvement to CCTV were possible. 

 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 It is assumed that having reviewed the previous information considered by the task 
and finish group and the consultation responses that the group have had sufficient 
information to form their conclusions and recommendations. The group did not feel it 
was appropriate to make any changes to the free car parks at this time because of 
the adverse impact upon footfall in town centres.  

 
7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1      Set out here which of the council’s policies are relevant to the decision being 

requested.  
 
7.2 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   

 
Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that 
increases opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on 
the environment. 
 
Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in 

accordance with the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of 

Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

 

 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 This review of Highway owned car parks within Caerphilly County Borough 

contributes to the following Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act (Wales) 2015: 

 
•  A prosperous Wales 
•  A Wales of cohesive communities 
•  A globally responsible Wales 

 
This report contributes to the well-being goals as set out in links to strategy above. It 
is consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable 
development principle in the Act in that Members reviewing car parks within the 
county borough should consider the goals of a prosperous Wales, a Wales of 
cohesive communities and a globally responsible Wales. 

  

Page 28



 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  Equalities Impact drafted as attached. 
 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The financial implications of the recommendations are as follows: 
 

Recommendation 3.2 - Standardised lower tariff county wide: this would result in a 
loss of income of approximately £40k per annum (based on 2019 figures). There 
would also be a one-off implementation cost of approximately £20k for the 
reprogramming of P&D machines and new car park signage. 
 
Recommendation 3.3- Remove charges from 5 country parks: this would result in an 
average loss of income of £49,626 per annum. 
 
Recommendation 3.4 - Reduced charge for parking permits for local business staff: 
the existing range of season tickets already offer a substantial discount on the daily 
tariffs of between 25-60% (depending on the duration of the season ticket and 
location of the car park). 
 
Recommendation 3.5 - Parents/carers concession for schools: no appreciable 
financial impact. 
 
Recommendation 3.6 - Remove Sunday charging at the Tywn: based on average 
ticket  sales, this would result in a loss of income of approximately £10k per annum. 
 
Recommendation 3.7 - Free parking for St. David’s Day: depending which day this 
falls on, this would result in a loss of income of approximately £2-3k per annum. 
 
Recommendation 3.8 - Introduce charging at P&R car parks: The potential income 
would depend on the tariff chosen. There would also be one-off capital costs for 
implementation and additional annual operational costs. 
 
Recommendation 3.9 - Consideration of charging at free car parks: no impact at this 
time.  The potential income would depend on the tariff chosen. There would also be 
one-off capital costs for implementation and additional annual operational costs. 
 
Recommendation 3.10 - Review criteria for resident permit parking: no impact at this 
time. 
 
Recommendation 3.11 - Consideration of zoning for residential permit parking areas: 
no impact at this time. 
 
Recommendation 3.12 - Extension of suspension of parking charges: estimated loss 
of income is £50k per month. 
 
Recommendation 3.13 - Trading and events in car parks: nil impact. 
 
Recommendation 3.14 - Cease overnight closures of Thorncombe Road No. 3 and 
Wesley Road car parks: following the retirement of the Parking Attendant, there 
would be a reduction in cost for this part time post of approx. £7k. 
 

Page 29



Recommendation 3.15 - Ring fencing of parking charges for maintenance and 
improvement of car parks: this would mean approximately £270k (based on actual 
2019/20 income and expenditure) per annum reduction in budget available for other 
parking, transportation, highway and engineering services. Note this rises to 
approximately £445k if calculated on 2020/21 budgets. 
 
Recommendation 3.16 - Additional/upgraded CCTV: depending on the equipment 
procured, this could lead to some additional maintenance costs. 

 
10.2 Members should note that any loss of income or reduction in budget would result in a 

direct reduction in available budget for other parking, transportation, highway and 
engineering services. Therefore, there would be a corresponding reduction in service 
delivery unless this loss/reduction was covered by other funding. 

 
10.3 The total financial impact of those recommendations that could be implemented as a 

first phase (i.e. 3.2, 3.3, 3.6 & 3.7 above) is estimated to result in an annual reduction 
in income of £103k and require a one off cost for changes to/removal of signage and 
P&D machines of up to £40k. 

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
  
11.1 If the decision was made to introduce charges in the car parks that are currently free 

and similarly with the Park and Ride facilities a review of resources would be needed 
to ensure sufficient levels of enforcement could be maintained. 

 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 Whilst it is for Members to determine which recommendations they support, the 

following Officer comments on some of the specific recommendations (using the 
same enumeration as in section 10) are intended to ensure Cabinet is able to make a 
fully informed decision: 

 
Recommendation 3.4 - The existing package of season tickets already offers a 
substantial reduction for all users on what are relatively low parking charges. 
Therefore, Officers do not endorse this recommendation. 

 
Recommendation 3.8 -The introduction of charges in P&R car parks could lead to 
more on street parking and illegal on street parking in the areas surrounding these 
car parks. In addition, the overall “message” that this potentially conveys is not 
conducive to encouraging the use of public transport to reduce traffic on our roads 

 
Recommendation 3.9  Parking in the outer lying free to use highway owned off street 
car parks are largely used by residents where there is limited or congested on street 
parking provision and little or no private off street parking provision. Some also 
support smaller shopping and business areas.  The introduction of charges in these 
car parks could lead to more on street parking, illegal on street parking and 
significant objections from local residents. 

 
Recommendation 3.15. - Whilst there is no dedicated budget for asset renewal and 
replacement, investment is required on an infrequent basis, and often not for years at 
a time. The ring fencing of the net car parking budget would tie up this funding year 
on year whilst waiting for necessary refurbishment and replacement works. This 
would be an inefficient way of managing scarce resources (note; this assume CPE 

Page 30



income is excluded). The net car parking budget provides essential funding for the 
wider transportation, highway and engineering services. Any budget reduction would 
mean a reduction in service in these areas or that other funding would need to be 
found to make up the shortfall.  
 

12.2  It should be noted that any recommendation supported that results in reduced 
income will have budgetary consequences. This would have to be funded from 
additional budget allocation or from reduction in some other Infrastructure service 
provision. 

 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000.  
 
 
 
Author:        Catherine Forbes-Thompson, Scrutiny Manager  
 
Consultees: Caerphilly County Borough Car Park Task and Finish Group 

Councillor John Ridgewell Cabinet Member for Environment & 
Infrastructure 

 Councillor Tudor Davies Chair Environment & Sustainability Scrutiny 
Committee 

 Councillor Adrian Hussey Vice Chair Environment & Sustainability 
Scrutiny Committee 

 Councillor Andrew Whitcombe Chair Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committee 

 Councillor Christine Forehead Vice Chair Housing and Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee 
Mark S. Williams Interim Corporate Director of Communities 
Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure 

 Clive Campbell, Transportation Engineering Manager 
 Dean Smith, Principal Engineer – Traffic Management 
 Steve Wilcox, Principal Officer – Town Centres & Business Support 
 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal and Monitoring Officer 
 Steve Harris, Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer 
 
 
Background Papers: 
Regeneration & Environment Scrutiny Committee Report 29th March 2016 – Scoping Report 
Welsh Government Report – Assessing the Impact of Car Parking Charges on Town Centre 
Footfall - 2015 
Welsh Government – Research into Car Parking Charging Strategies - 2017 
Regeneration & Environment Scrutiny Committee Report 4th July 2017 – Update report 
Environment & Sustainability Scrutiny Committee 29th October 2019 – CPE Update Report 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 List of all car parks  
Appendix 2 Charging Tariffs 
Appendix 3 Country Parks Car Parks Income since 2016  
Appendix 4 Income and Expenditure 
 

Page 31



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 32



Appendix 1 
 

 
LIST OF HIGHWAY OWNED PUBLIC CAR PARKS 
 

Item  Location  Car Park Name  Charges  Bays  CCTV 

 Aberbargoed Pant Street Free 12 no 

 Abercarn Dan-y-Rhiw Terrace Free 15 no 

 Abercarn Bridge Street Free 8 no 

 Abercarn Gwyddon Road Free 10 No 

 Abertysswg Walter Street Free 44 no 

 Bargoed Bargoed Station Park & Ride Free 89 no 

 Bargoed Bus Station Free Free 18 no 

 Bargoed Emporium  Pay and display & season ticket 44 yes 

 Bargoed Bristol Terrace Free 12 no 

 Bargoed Gateway Free 30 no 

 Bargoed Hanbury Road Free 114 yes 

 Bargoed Restaurant Site Free Free 34 no 

 Bargoed St Gwladys Pay and display & season ticket 24 Yes 

 Bedwas  Bridgend Inn Free 25 no 

 Bedwas  Church Street Free 12 No 

  Blackwood  Bus Station   Pay and display 45 yes 

  Blackwood  Cliff Road   Pay and display & season tickets 89 yes 

  Blackwood  Court House  Pay and display & season ticket 37 no 

  Blackwood  Gordon Road  Season ticket for residents only 9 yes 

  Blackwood  Highland Terrace  Season ticket for residents only 10 no 

  Blackwood  High street   Pay and display 188 yes 

  Blackwood  Libanus Road  Season ticket for residents & non residents only 20 no 

  Blackwood  Market Traders  Pay and display 21 yes 

  Blackwood  Montclaire avenue  free 25 no 

  Blackwood  Thorncombe 2  Pay and display & season ticket 35 yes 

  Blackwood  Thorncombe 3  Pay and display & season ticket 69 yes 

  Blackwood  Wesley Road  Pay and display 28 yes 

  Blackwood  Woodbine Road  Pay and display 34 Yes 

P
age 33



Appendix 1 
 

Item  Location  Car Park Name  Charges  Bays  CCTV 

 Caerphilly Aber Station  Park & Ride (Free) 130 no 

 Caerphilly Bedwas Road  Pay and display & season ticket 18 no 

  Caerphilly  Caerphilly Station  Station Park & Ride (Free) 270 no 

  Caerphilly  Crescent Road  Pay and display & season ticket 168 Yes 

  Caerphilly  Energlyn & Churchill  Park & Ride (Free) 15 no 

  Caerphilly  Lawrence Street  Free & Season tickets (Limited waiting – 2 hours) 14 no 

  Caerphilly  Station Terrace  Pay and display & season ticket 24 no 

  Caerphilly  Twyn  Pay and display 62 Yes 

  Caerphilly  White Street  Free 10 no 

 Cefn Fforest Waunborfa Road Free 16 No 

 Crosskeys Gladstone Street Free 40 No 

 Crumlin  Crown Street Free 12 No 

 Crumlin  Kendon Road Free 13 No 

 Crumlin  Pen-Y-Fan Free 40 No 

 Cwmfelinfach Alexandra Road Free 25 No 

 Cwmfelinfach Commercial Buildings Free 25 No 

 Cwmfelinfach Maindee Road Free 10 No 

 Fleur-de-lis Ivor Street Free 30 No 

 Hengoed Hengoed Station Park & Ride (Free) 45 no 

 Llanbradach Station Road  Free 20 yes 

 Llanbradach Station Road  Free 13 No 

 Machen Siloam Hill Free (Limited waiting - 1 hour) 4 No 

 Machen The Crescent 55 - Free 55 No 

 Markham Bryn Road Free 12 No 

 Nelson Dynevor Terrace Free 35 No 

 Newbridge High Street  Free 25 No 

 Newbridge Meredith Terrace  Free 10 No 

 Newbridge Newbridge Station  Park & Ride (Free) 75 yes 

 Newbridge Pantside Cottages  Free 6 No 

 Newbridge Victoria Terrace  Free 12 No 

 Newbridge West View  Free 14 No 

P
age 34



Appendix 1 
 

Item  Location  Car Park Name  Charges  Bays  CCTV 

 New Tredegar  Dyffryn Terrace  Free 26 No 

 New Tredegar  Jubilee Road  Free 6 No 

 New Tredegar  Morgan Street  Free 12 No 

 Oakdale Pen-Rhiw Avenue Free 15 No 

 Pengam Pengam Station Park & Ride (Free) 155 yes 

 Pontllanfraith  Bryn Lane Free 10 No 

 Pontllanfraith  Sir Ivors Road Free 42 No 

 Pontymister  Foundary Road Free 20 No 

 Pontymister  Herbert Avenue Free 38 No 

 Pontymister  Mill Street Free 22 No 

 Pontymister  Risca Station Park & Ride (Free) 87 Yes 

 Rhymney Lower Row, Bute Town Free 6 No 

 Rhymney Rhymney Station Park & Ride (Free) 23 No 

 Risca  Longbridge Free 37 No 

 Risca  Raglan Street Free (Lorry parking permitted - 2 long bays) 6 No 

 Risca  Rifleman Street Free 17 No 

 Risca  Tredegar Terrace Free 64 No 

 Senghenydd Commercial Street Free 15 No 

 Trethomas Navigation Street Free 30 No 

 Wattsville Islwyn Street Free 10 No 

 Ynysddu High Street Free 25 No 

 Ystrad Mynach  Oakfield street Pay and display 64 yes 

 Ystrad Mynach  Ystrad Station Park & Ride (Free) 93 yes 

  

P
age 35



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 36



Appendix 2 
 

CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL  

PAY AND DISPLAY CAR PARK CHARGES 

Town Car Park 1 hr  2 hrs  3 hrs  4 hrs  Day  Week  Quarter  Year  

BARGOED Emporium 70p  £1.00  £1.40  £2.20  £3.70  N/a  £105  £385  

BARGOED St Gwladys 70p  £1.00  £1.40  £2.20  £3.70  N/a  £105  £385  

          

CAERPHILLY Twyn 80p  £1.40  £2.00  £3.70  £6.20  N/a  N/a  N/a  

CAERPHILLY Crescent 
Road  
Short stay 

70p  £1.00  £1.40  £2.20  £3.70  N/a  N/a  N/a  

CAERPHILLY Crescent 
Road  
Long Stay 

70p  90p  £1.10  £1.40  £2.20  £10.00  £105  £385  

CAERPHILLY Bedwas 
Road 

70p  90p  £1.10  £1.40  £2.20  £10.00  £105  £385  

CAERPHILLY Station 
Terrace 

70p  90p  £1.10  £1.40  £2.20  £10.00  £105  £385  

CAERPHILLY Lawrence 
Street 

N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  £83  £275  

BLACKWOOD Court House 70p  90p  £1.10  £1.40  £2.20  £10.00  £105  £385  

BLACKWOOD Thorncombe 
Road No 2 

70p  90p  £1.10  £1.40  £2.20  £10.00  £105  £385  

BLACKWOOD Thorncombe 
Road No 3 

70p  90p  £1.10  £1.40  £2.20  £10.00  £105  £385  

BLACKWOOD Cliff Road  70p  90p  £1.10  £1.40  £2.20  £10.00  £105  £385  

BLACKWOOD Wesley Road  70p  90p  £1.10  £1.40  £2.20  N/a  N/a  N/a  

BLACKWOOD High Street  70p  £1.00  £1.40  £2.20  £3.70  N/a  N/a  N/a  

BLACKWOOD Woodbine 
Road  

70p  £1.00  £1.40  £2.20  £3.70  N/a  N/a  N/a  

BLACKWOOD Bus Station  70p  £1.00  £1.40  £2.20  £3.70  N/a  N/a  N/a  

BLACKWOOD Market 
Traders 

70p  £1.00  £1.40  £2.20  £3.70  N/a  N/a  N/a  

BLACKWOOD Libanus 
Road (non-
residents) 

N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  £220  N/a  

BLACKWOOD Libanus 
Road 
(residents) 

N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  £83  

BLACKWOOD Highland 
Terrace 
(residents 
only) 

N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  £83  

BLACKWOOD Gordon Road  
(residents 
only) 

N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  N/a  £83  

YSTRAD 
MYNACH 

Oakfield 
Street 

60p  70p  90p  £1.20  £1.70  £8.50  N/a  N/a  

 

 

Page 37



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 38



Appendix 3

Countryside Country Parks Car Park Charging Income (nn charges 20/21 due to Covid 19)

per Year Per Year

2019/2020 Per Year Exc Cwmcarn

C.C. Description

Period 

Movement

 Actual 

Balance 

Revised 

Annul Bud Variance

2762 CWMCARN VISITOR CENTRE -5530.66 64,998.33-      -72500 -7501.67

3001 NORTHERN RHYMNEY VALLEY (Parc Cwm Darren) -1396.72 15,502.78-      -15755 -252.22

3004 PENYFAN POND COUNTRY PARK -2500.86 18,296.06-      -21569 -3272.94

3005 SIRHOWY VALLEY COUNTRY PK -294.22 2,577.44-        -3891 -1313.56

3010 PENALLTA COMM PARK -1132.25 6,681.13-        -13369 -6687.87

3013 BARGOED COUNTRY PARK -178.4 1,989.27-        -3270 -1280.73

110,045.01-    45,046.68-       

2018/2019

C.C. Description Period Movement Actual BalanceRevised Annul BudVariance

2762 CWMCARN VISITOR CENTRE -901.63 52,038.31-      -62500 -10461.7

3001 NORTHERN RHYMNEY VALLEY (Parc Cwm Darren) -215 12,199.34-      -19755 -7555.66

3004 PENYFAN POND COUNTRY PARK -395 22,135.33-      -21569 566.33

3005 SIRHOWY VALLEY COUNTRY PK -40 2,609.16-        -4891 -2281.84

3010 PENALLTA COMM PARK -215 10,717.71-      -16369 -5651.29

3013 BARGOED COUNTRY PARK -30 1,652.44-        -4491 -2838.56

101,352.29-    49,313.98-       

2017/2018

C.C. Description Period Movement Actual BalanceRevised Annul BudVariance

2762 CWMCARN VISITOR CENTRE -5847 59,210.14-      -61000 -1789.86

3001 NORTHERN RHYMNEY VALLEY (Parc Cwm Darren) -931.49 12,196.63-      -28755 -16558.4

3004 PENYFAN POND COUNTRY PARK -1608.38 21,059.60-      -21569 -509.4

3005 SIRHOWY VALLEY COUNTRY PK -157.77 2,078.48-        -7191 -5112.52

3010 PENALLTA COMM PARK -845.02 11,064.45-      -21569 -10504.6

3013 BARGOED COUNTRY PARK -151.99 1,990.16-        -7191 -5200.84

107,599.46-    48,389.32-       

2016/2017

C.C. Description Period Movement Actual BalanceRevised Annul BudVariance

2762 CWMCARN VISITOR CENTRE -1.67 57,704.03-      -61000 -3295.97

3001 NORTHERN RHYMNEY VALLEY (Parc Cwm Darren) -1858.48 13,155.05-      -28755 -15600

3004 PENYFAN POND COUNTRY PARK -3401.96 24,132.38-      -21569 2563.38

3005 SIRHOWY VALLEY COUNTRY PK -472.49 3,340.83-        -7191 -3850.17

3010 PENALLTA COMM PARK -1787.6 12,675.18-      -21569 -8893.82

3013 BARGOED COUNTRY PARK -354.37 2,494.64-        -7191 -4696.36

113,502.11-    55,798.08-       

2015/2016

C.C. Description Period Movement Actual BalanceRevised Annul BudVariance

2762 CWMCARN VISITOR CENTRE -1507.42 53,236.94-      -61000 -7763.06

3001 NORTHERN RHYMNEY VALLEY (Parc Cwm Darren) -1606 11,878.54-      -28755 -16876.5

3004 PENYFAN POND COUNTRY PARK -2796 20,693.43-      -21569 -875.57

3005 SIRHOWY VALLEY COUNTRY PK -447 3,136.37-        -7191 -4054.63

3010 PENALLTA COMM PARK -1639 11,884.92-      -21569 -9684.08

3013 BARGOED COUNTRY PARK -265.07 1,991.68-        -7191 -5199.32

102,821.88-    49,584.94-       

2014/2015 (not introduced until late August/September in Country Parks so figures lower than later years)

C.C. Description Period Movement Actual BalanceRevised Annul BudVariance

2762 CWMCARN VISITOR CENTRE -1002.21 61,259.84-      -57000 4259.84

3001 NORTHERN RHYMNEY VALLEY (Parc Cwm Darren) -1566.06 6,655.30-        -28330 -21674.7

3004 PENYFAN POND COUNTRY PARK -2004.55 8,531.99-        -21250 -12718

3005 SIRHOWY VALLEY COUNTRY PK -469.67 2,000.81-        -7085 -5084.19

3010 PENALLTA COMM PARK -1941.29 8,219.45-        -21250 -13030.6

3013 BARGOED COUNTRY PARK -280.67 1,196.79-        -7085 -5888.21

87,864.18-      26,604.34-       

2013/2014

C.C. Description Period Movement Actual BalanceRevised Annul BudVariance

2762 CWMCARN VISITOR CENTRE -1146.42 51,497.63-      -50000 1497.63

51,497.63-      

2012/2013

C.C. Description Period Movement Actual BalanceRevised Annul BudVariance

2762 CWMCARN VISITOR CENTRE -2108.88 46,046.81-      0 46046.81

46,046.81-      

GRAND TOTAL

2762 CWMCARN VISITOR CENTRE 445,992.03-    since 2012/2013 when introduced

3001 NORTHERN RHYMNEY VALLEY (Parc Cwm Darren) 71,587.64-      since 2014/2015 when introduced

3004 PENYFAN POND COUNTRY PARK 114,848.79-    since 2014/2015 when introduced

3005 SIRHOWY VALLEY COUNTRY PK 15,743.09-      since 2014/2015 when introduced

3010 PENALLTA COMM PARK 61,242.84-      since 2014/2015 when introduced

3013 BARGOED COUNTRY PARK 11,314.98-      since 2014/2015 when introduced

720,729.37- 720,729.37- 274,737.34-  

Country Parks excluding Cwmcarn VC 274,737.34- 

Page 39



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 40



Appendix 4

Car Park Name
*Split % Staff & 

Resources
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

#Income (Ticket Sales) ^Income (PCNs) *Total Income Energy Costs *Staff & Resources NNDR Total Cost

Court House, Blackwood 1% 4569 Unavailble 4569 48 1687 1105 2840

Thorncombe 2, Blackwood 5% 13406 Unavailble 13406 429 8437 2393 11260

Thorncombe 3, Blackwood 5% 34789 Unavailble 34789 833 8437 8416 17686

High Street, Blackwood 20% 190001 Unavailble 190001 1835 33749 34979 70563

Wesley Road, Blackwood 10% 21653 Unavailble 21653 215 16875 4997 22087

Woodbine, Blackwood 5% 30511 Unavailble 30511 107 8437 6970 15514

Bus Station, Blackwood 5% 25604 Unavailble 25604 1313 8437 8285 18034

Market Traders, Blackwood 5% 5753 Unavailble 5753 332 8437 7627 16396

Cliff Road, Blackwood 5% 37815 Unavailble 37815 291 8437 8548 17276

Oakfield Street, Ystrad Mynach 2% 25377 Unavailble 25377 718 3375 4155 8248

Twyn, Caerphilly 13% 108270 Unavailble 108270 239 21937 22487 44663

Crescent, Caerphilly 15% 36544 Unavailble 36544 795 25312 8285 34391

Bedwas Road, Caerphilly 5% 9280 Unavailble 9280 79 8437 2288 10804

Station Terrace, Caerphilly 2% 12418 Unavailble 12418 219 3375 10126 13720

Emporium, Bargoed 1% 11123 Unavailble 11123 211 1687 2130 4028

St Gwladys, Bargoed 1% 16287 Unavailble 16287 280 1687 2893 4860

TOTAL 100% 583400 Unavailble 583400 7945 168743 135682 312369

Notes

# 2019/20 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2018/19

~ 2018/19 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2017/18

^ PCN income split per site not available so allocated as percentage based on ticket income in same year.

* Staff & Resources allocated on percentage split as not seperated on ledger

All income is net of VAT and excludes Service Review Costs

2019/20 Ticket Income includes a price increase in Car Parking from July 2019

2019/20 PCN Income unavailable as saw the introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement (on street parking enforcement) from April 2019

2019/20 Staff & Resources based on original staff (exc new CPE Officers) - but included regarding and contracted hours changes

P
age 41



Appendix 4

Car Park Name
*Split % Staff & 

Resources

Court House, Blackwood 1%

Thorncombe 2, Blackwood 5%

Thorncombe 3, Blackwood 5%

High Street, Blackwood 20%

Wesley Road, Blackwood 10%

Woodbine, Blackwood 5%

Bus Station, Blackwood 5%

Market Traders, Blackwood 5%

Cliff Road, Blackwood 5%

Oakfield Street, Ystrad Mynach 2%

Twyn, Caerphilly 13%

Crescent, Caerphilly 15%

Bedwas Road, Caerphilly 5%

Station Terrace, Caerphilly 2%

Emporium, Bargoed 1%

St Gwladys, Bargoed 1%

TOTAL 100%

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

~Income (Ticket Sales) ^Income (ECNs) *Total Income Energy Costs *Staff & Resources NNDR Total Cost

4516 641 5157 44 1172 1079 2295

13122 1862 14984 392 5859 2339 8590

34053 4831 38884 761 5859 8224 14844

185981 26386 212367 1675 23437 34181 59293

21195 3007 24202 196 11719 4883 16798

29866 4237 34103 98 5859 6811 12768

25062 3555 28617 1271 5859 8096 15225

5631 799 6430 303 5859 7453 13615

37015 5251 42266 273 5859 8353 14485

24840 3524 28364 655 2344 4061 7060

105980 15035 121015 218 15234 21974 37426

35771 5075 40846 765 17578 8096 26438

9084 1289 10373 50 5859 2236 8145

12155 1724 13879 200 2344 9895 12439

10888 1545 12433 193 1172 2082 3446

15942 2262 18204 265 1172 2827 4264

571101 81023 652124 7358 117185 132586 257130

Notes

# 2019/20 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2018/19

~ 2018/19 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2017/18

^ PCN income split per site not available so allocated as percentage based on ticket income in same year.

* Staff & Resources allocated on percentage split as not seperated on ledger

All income is net of VAT and excludes Service Review Costs

2019/20 Ticket Income includes a price increase in Car Parking from July 2019

2019/20 PCN Income unavailable as saw the introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement (on street parking enforcement) from April 2019

2019/20 Staff & Resources based on original staff (exc new CPE Officers) - but included regarding and contracted hours changes

P
age 42



Appendix 4

Car Park Name
*Split % Staff & 

Resources

Court House, Blackwood 1%

Thorncombe 2, Blackwood 5%

Thorncombe 3, Blackwood 5%

High Street, Blackwood 20%

Wesley Road, Blackwood 10%

Woodbine, Blackwood 5%

Bus Station, Blackwood 5%

Market Traders, Blackwood 5%

Cliff Road, Blackwood 5%

Oakfield Street, Ystrad Mynach 2%

Twyn, Caerphilly 13%

Crescent, Caerphilly 15%

Bedwas Road, Caerphilly 5%

Station Terrace, Caerphilly 2%

Emporium, Bargoed 1%

St Gwladys, Bargoed 1%

TOTAL 100%

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

Income (Ticket Sales) *Income (ECNs) Total Income Energy Costs *Staff & Resources NNDR Total Cost

4420 469 4889 41 990 1048 2079

12844 1364 14208 368 4952 2270 7590

33333 3539 36872 714 4952 7984 13650

182046 19328 201374 1573 19811 33184 54567

20747 2203 22950 184 9904 4741 14828

29234 3104 32338 92 4952 6612 11656

24532 2604 27136 1193 4952 7859 14004

5512 585 6097 284 4952 7236 12472

36232 3847 40079 256 4952 8109 13317

24315 2581 26896 615 1981 3942 6538

103738 11014 114752 205 12875 21332 34412

35014 3717 38731 718 14856 7859 23433

8892 944 9836 47 4952 2171 7169

11898 1263 13161 188 1981 9606 11774

10658 1132 11790 181 990 2021 3192

15605 1657 17262 249 990 2745 3983

559020 59351 618371 6907 99042 128717 234666

Notes

# 2019/20 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2018/19

~ 2018/19 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2017/18

^ PCN income split per site not available so allocated as percentage based on ticket income in same year.

* Staff & Resources allocated on percentage split as not seperated on ledger

All income is net of VAT and excludes Service Review Costs

2019/20 Ticket Income includes a price increase in Car Parking from July 2019

2019/20 PCN Income unavailable as saw the introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement (on street parking enforcement) from April 2019

2019/20 Staff & Resources based on original staff (exc new CPE Officers) - but included regarding and contracted hours changes

P
age 43



Appendix 4

Car Park Name
*Split % Staff & 

Resources

Court House, Blackwood 1%

Thorncombe 2, Blackwood 5%

Thorncombe 3, Blackwood 5%

High Street, Blackwood 20%

Wesley Road, Blackwood 10%

Woodbine, Blackwood 5%

Bus Station, Blackwood 5%

Market Traders, Blackwood 5%

Cliff Road, Blackwood 5%

Oakfield Street, Ystrad Mynach 2%

Twyn, Caerphilly 13%

Crescent, Caerphilly 15%

Bedwas Road, Caerphilly 5%

Station Terrace, Caerphilly 2%

Emporium, Bargoed 1%

St Gwladys, Bargoed 1%

TOTAL 100%

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Income (Ticket Sales) *Income (ECNs) Total Income Energy Costs *Staff & Resources NNDR Total Cost

4886 653 5539 39 1241 851 2130

11958 1598 13556 345 6205 2406 8956

31323 4185 35508 670 6205 8384 15258

176426 23570 199996 1475 24822 29646 55943

23125 3090 26215 173 12410 4228 16811

30343 4054 34397 86 6205 6561 12852

20828 2783 23611 1119 6205 7047 14371

5591 747 6338 267 6205 4811 11283

36274 4847 41121 240 6205 8991 15436

24219 3236 27455 577 2482 4714 7773

110799 14804 125603 192 16133 20534 36859

34831 4654 39485 673 18615 10449 29737

9793 1308 11101 44 6205 2211 8460

12623 1687 14310 176 2482 8262 10920

11005 1470 12475 170 1241 4082 5493

16203 2165 18368 233 1241 3694 5168

560227 74851 635078 6479 124102 126870 257451

Notes

# 2019/20 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2018/19

~ 2018/19 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2017/18

^ PCN income split per site not available so allocated as percentage based on ticket income in same year.

* Staff & Resources allocated on percentage split as not seperated on ledger

All income is net of VAT and excludes Service Review Costs

2019/20 Ticket Income includes a price increase in Car Parking from July 2019

2019/20 PCN Income unavailable as saw the introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement (on street parking enforcement) from April 2019

2019/20 Staff & Resources based on original staff (exc new CPE Officers) - but included regarding and contracted hours changes

P
age 44



Appendix 4

Car Park Name
*Split % Staff & 

Resources

Court House, Blackwood 1%

Thorncombe 2, Blackwood 5%

Thorncombe 3, Blackwood 5%

High Street, Blackwood 20%

Wesley Road, Blackwood 10%

Woodbine, Blackwood 5%

Bus Station, Blackwood 5%

Market Traders, Blackwood 5%

Cliff Road, Blackwood 5%

Oakfield Street, Ystrad Mynach 2%

Twyn, Caerphilly 13%

Crescent, Caerphilly 15%

Bedwas Road, Caerphilly 5%

Station Terrace, Caerphilly 2%

Emporium, Bargoed 1%

St Gwladys, Bargoed 1%

TOTAL 100%

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16

Income (Ticket Sales) *Income (ECNs) Total Income Energy Costs *Staff & Resources NNDR Total Cost

4762 747 5509 38 1064 844 1945

12962 2034 14996 337 5320 2386 8043

38196 5994 44190 654 5320 8315 14288

172124 27011 199135 1440 21283 29402 52125

23073 3621 26694 168 10640 4193 15002

31645 4966 36611 84 5320 6507 11911

24829 3896 28725 1092 5320 6989 13401

6785 1065 7850 260 5320 4772 10352

38717 6076 44793 235 5320 8917 14472

21185 3324 24509 563 2128 4975 7667

107579 16882 124461 188 13833 20365 34385

37039 5812 42851 657 15961 10363 26981

8573 1345 9918 43 5320 2193 7556

12161 1908 14069 172 2128 8194 10494

10281 1613 11894 166 1064 4049 5278

16913 2654 19567 228 1064 3663 4955

566824 88948 655772 6325 106405 126126 238856

Notes

# 2019/20 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2018/19

~ 2018/19 Ticket Income per site not available so  allocated as percentage based on 2017/18

^ PCN income split per site not available so allocated as percentage based on ticket income in same year.

* Staff & Resources allocated on percentage split as not seperated on ledger

All income is net of VAT and excludes Service Review Costs

2019/20 Ticket Income includes a price increase in Car Parking from July 2019

2019/20 PCN Income unavailable as saw the introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement (on street parking enforcement) from April 2019

2019/20 Staff & Resources based on original staff (exc new CPE Officers) - but included regarding and contracted hours changes

P
age 45



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 46



 
CABINET – 13TH JANUARY 2021 

 
SUBJECT: ENFORCED SALE POLICY 
 
REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 
 

 

 

1. PURPOSE 
 

1.1 The attached report was considered by the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
(Environment & Sustainability and Housing & Regeneration) on 15th December 
2020. The report outlined a proposed Enforced Sale Policy, prior to its 
presentation to Cabinet for approval on 13th January 2021. This is a mechanism 
by which problematic, long-term empty private sector dwellings, derelict 
commercial properties and land are brought back into beneficial use where 
Statutory debts have been registered against the property but not discharged.  

 
2        SCRUTINY COMMITTEE COMMENTS  
 
2.1  This report attached at Appendix 1 was considered by the scrutiny committee 

members who sought clarification that this proposed policy would only apply to 
empty properties and were reassured that the policy clearly states that this is a 
last resort to deal with long term empty properties. 

 
2.2 Members asked if elements of the criteria are weighted for example where there 

are debts or does a property vacancy trigger the enforced sale procedure. The 
scrutiny committee were assured that the criteria as set out in the policy must be 
followed and the council would follow the steps to try to work with property 
owners before using this policy.  

 
2.3 The scrutiny committee sought details on the number of empty properties and 

were informed that the council tax database is checked in April every year and 
will show all properties registered as empty for 6 months or more. The number 
fluctuate around 1000 to 1500 per year. The majority will make their way onto 
the housing market and the private housing team will work with property owners. 
In terms of problematic properties that this policy could apply to the number will 
be single figures.  

 
2.4 Members asked what the council does where properties do not have a registered 

owner and were advised that officers would contact Land Registry which shows 
properties that have been sold and because it has been a requirement to register 
sales for more than 20 years, the number of properties that are not registered 
with the Land Registry are becoming fewer.  

2.5 Finally the scrutiny committee asked how long this process would take and were 
advised that it could take 6-7 months to follow the procedure. Members were 

Page 47

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7



advised it is a useful and cost neutral policy that can bring long term empty 
properties back into beneficial use.  

 
 

3 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Following consideration and discussion the joint scrutiny committee, by the 

majority present and in noting that there were none against and no abstentions, 
recommend to Cabinet that: 

 
3.2 That Cabinet approve the adoption of an enforced sale policy as an enforcement 

tool for Caerphilly County Borough Council’s use. 
 
3.3 That Cabinet approve a figure of £500 be adopted as the level of debt at which 

this policy can be implemented. 
 
 

 
Author:  Catherine Forbes-Thompson, Scrutiny Manager – forbecl@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 
Appendix: Report to Joint Scrutiny Committee 15th December 2020 – Agenda Item 4 

Page 48



 
 

JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(ENVIRONMENT & SUSTAINABILTY SCRUTINY AND  

HOUSING & REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEES)  
– 15TH DECEMBER 2020 

 
 
SUBJECT: ENFORCED SALE POLICY 
 
REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To seek the views of the Scrutiny Committee on a proposed Enforced Sale Policy, prior 

to its presentation to Cabinet for approval.  This is a mechanism by which problematic, 
long-term empty private sector dwellings, derelict commercial properties and land are 
brought back into beneficial use where Council debts have been registered against the 

property but not discharged." 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The purpose of this policy is to set out a framework for Caerphilly County Borough 

Council to use statutory powers under the Enforced Sale Procedure with a view of 
targeting long-term problematic empty properties, and to bring these properties back 
into use where possible. 

 
2.2 Caerphilly County Borough Council recognises the importance of bringing problematic 

empty properties back into use, as they can be a source of many problems and are a 
wasted resource. Long-term empty properties can have a negative impact on the visual 
amenity in the immediate neighbourhood and cause nuisance to adjacent occupiers. 
They can also lead to increased fly-tipping, vandalism, arson, potential squatting and 
other anti-social behaviour. 

 
2.3 An Enforced Sale Policy will aim to free up public sector resources, recoup debts owed 

to the Authority, improve local communities and may increase the supply of affordable 
housing. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Members recommend to Cabinet the adoption of an Enforced Sale Policy as an 

enforcement tool for Caerphilly County Borough Council’s use. 
 
3.2 That Members recommend to Cabinet that a figure of £500 be adopted as the level of 

debt at which this policy can be implemented. 

Appendix 

Page 49



4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Implementation of this policy has the potential to bring problematic empty properties 

back into beneficial use, recoup debts owed to the Authority, improve local 
communities and increase the County Borough’s affordable housing supply. However, 
each individual property needs to be considered on its own merits and financial 
viability. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The purpose of this policy is to set out a framework for Caerphilly County Borough 

Council to use the Enforced Sale Procedure utilising relevant statutory powers with a 
view of targeting long-term problematic empty properties, and to bring these properties 
back into use where possible. 

 
5.2 Caerphilly County Borough Council recognises the importance of bringing empty 

properties back into use, as they are a wasted resource and can be a source of many 
problems. Long-term empty properties can have a negative impact on the visual 
amenity in the immediate neighbourhood and cause nuisance to adjacent occupiers. 
They can also lead to increased fly-tipping, vandalism, arson, potential squatting and 
other anti-social behaviour. 

 
5.3 As a result of problems caused by empty properties, the Authority has to increasingly 

resort to enforcement activity to deal with them. Such enforcement usually consists of 
the Authority having to undertake works to the property in default of a notice with a 
view to recharging the owner the cost of these works. However, such debts are not 
always paid and become a Charge on the property. Such Charges are only retrievable 
when the property is sold, which may not be for many years, resulting in a long-term 
outstanding debt. Enforced Sale is a power contained in Statute, which triggers sale 
under the Law of Property Act 1925 (Section 103), which allows Local Authorities to 
act as mortgagors in possession and sell the problematic property to retrieve monies 
owed. 

 
5.4 Whilst there are various actions a Local Authority can take in respect of an empty 

property, a change in ownership brought about by use of the Enforced Sale Policy is 
intended to introduce a new owner who it is anticipated will be more able and willing to 
invest in the property, ensure its occupation and maintain its upkeep in order to bring 
such properties back into use. 

 
5.5 A full copy of the proposed Enforced Sale Policy is included at Appendix One. 
 
5.6 In order to utilise the Enforced Sale procedure, a minimum level of debt must be 

specified. Any debts above this limit will allow utilisation of the Enforced Sale Policy. It 
is proposed that this level is set at £500, which is comparable with the level set by 
other Local Authorities in the region who utilise such a procedure. 

 
5.7 In addition to the agreed debt threshold, the following criteria must also be met in order 

to consider an Enforced Sale: 

 The debt must not be statute barred (generally under 12-years-old); 

 The debt must be more than 2 months old to give a property owner adequate time 
to redeem it; 

 The property must be vacant with no prospect of it becoming occupied in the next 
6 months; 

Page 50



 If the owner can be traced, they must have demonstrated wilful non-compliance 
with legislation and compliance with legal notices served in relation to the property; 

 No response has been received to letters regarding the Enforced Sale and non-
compliance with legal notices. 

 
5.8 Enforced Sale will be considered as a last resort and Officers will attempt to work with 

the property’s owner, if they can be traced and contacted, to provide advice and 
support in relation to bringing the property back into beneficial use. This can include: 

 Informing the owner about the problems being caused by the property being empty, 
together with its impact upon the wider community; 

 Offering potential financial solutions, including the availability of loans/grants or 
negotiate the private sale of the property; 

 Highlighting the consequences of allowing the property to fall into further disrepair, 
including its market value depreciation and risk of enforcement action; 

 Inspecting the property to identify if it is suitable for letting and inform the owner of 
the works required to bring it up to current standards; 

 Guiding the existing and future owners through the legal requirements of Rent 
Smart Wales registration and licensing when applicable. 

 
5.9 Where an owner cannot be traced or a property is unregistered, the Enforced Sale 

Policy can still be utilised but it will not be possible to work with the owner prior to 
action. 

 
5.10 Marketing and sale of the property where the Enforced Sale Policy is utilised will differ 

from a traditional property sale. For example, there is no right of entry for prospective 
purchasers to view the property and there is no power to put up a ‘For Sale’ sign. 

 
5.11 The Council has a duty to secure the best possible price on a sale. In the first instance, 

sale will be offered to a preferred bidder. Following a valuation of the property by a 
suitably qualified surveyor, closed tenders will be invited from all Registered Social 
Landlords zoned to develop in the County Borough and Caerphilly Homes, with the 
property being offered to the highest bidder, only if the valuation is met or bettered. 
Sales to a preferred purchaser or sale at auction must be approved by the relevant 
Director. 

 
5.12 A sale through public auction will be considered if: 

 No closed tenders were received for the property; 

 The valuation was not met. 

5.13 Upon completion of the sale, a bank account will be setup to hold the proceeds of sale 

(less all costs and charges). Where the owner is known, they will be advised of the 

sale. Where the owner is not known, the proceeds of sale will be held. In both 

instances, if the money is not claimed within 12 years the Council is free to allocate 

such money as it pleases. 

 

5.14 It should be noted that if, at any stage prior to sale, the owner should pay all 

outstanding debt, Enforced Sale is no longer an option. 

 
5.15 As the legal process of Enforced Sale is complex, consultation with Legal Services will 

be carried out in each instance of Enforced Sale. 
 
5.16 Conclusion   

Page 51



The adoption of an Enforced Sale Policy has the potential to bring many benefits to 
our local communities by reducing the issues associated with long-term empty 
properties. It can also increase the housing supply in the County Borough. Such a 
policy also reduces outstanding debts to the Authority. 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 There are no assumptions made in this report.  
 
 
7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1      The contents of the report links with A Foundation for Success (Regeneration Strategy 

2018-2023) objectives in relation to “Supporting Quality of Life”: 

 Improve the quality of the existing housing stock through targeted intervention – 
The utilisation of an Enforced Sale Policy can bring unutilised dwellings back into 
beneficial use to increase the amount of good quality rental housing in the County 
Borough. 

 
7.2 The report supports the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 under well-being objective 3 of 

addressing the supply, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the County 
Borough by increasing the supply and improving the condition of rental housing. 

 
7.3 This report contributes to Caerphilly Homes Service Plan 2018-23 objective 5 – tackle 

the determinants of poor health and well-being by improving housing conditions in the 
private sector. 

 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, sets out seven Well-being 

Goals which aim to make a positive impact upon the social, economic, environmental 
and cultural well-being of the area or community concerned. The Enforced Sale Policy 
aligns with the following Well-being Goals: 

 A prosperous Wales; 

 A resilient Wales; 

 A healthier Wales; 

 A more equal Wales; and, 

 A Wales of cohesive communities. 
 
8.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets out the sustainable 

development principles against which all public bodies in Wales should assess their 
decision-making. The aim of the legislation is to ensure the well-being of future 
generations through maximising the contribution public bodies make towards the well-
being goals. The principle is also known as the five ways of working and the following 
are relevant in relation to this report: 

 

 Long Term – Utilisation of the Enforced Sale Policy could bring currently empty, 
dilapidated, problematic properties back into beneficial use for many years to 
come. The objectives also link with creating sustainable communities by tackling 
those properties deemed problematic; 

 Prevention – Use of an Enforced Sale Policy can prevent problems associated with 
currently empty properties, such as squatting and vandalism, from escalating and 

Page 52



reoccurring; 

 Integration – Bringing properties back into beneficial use can impact upon the well-
being goals of partner organisations such as Housing Associations and the Local 
Health Board; 

 Collaboration – Enforced Sales can enable collaboration with local Registered 
Social Landlords and local property owners; 

 Involvement – Identifying and addressing problematic properties under this policy 
will be done in conjunction with local communities, property owners and Registered 
Social Landlords to bring about a mutually beneficial outcome. 

 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic 

Equality Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential unlawful discrimination and/or 
low level or minor negative impact has been identified. Therefore, a full EIA has not 
been carried out. 

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The main aim of the policy is to recover outstanding debts, which is financially 

beneficial to the Authority. 
 
10.2 Caerphilly Homes may purchase properties through this procedure, which would be 

subject to ensuring a viable Housing Business Plan for potential purchases utilising 
the Housing Revenue Account and/or prudential borrowing. 

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no personnel implications in relation to this report. 
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 The draft report has been circulated to the consultees listed below and all comments 

incorporated into this version of the report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Building Act 1984, Public Health Act 1961, Housing Act 1985, Local Government 

(Miscellaneous) Provisions Act 1982, Environmental Protection Act 1980, Prevention 
of Damage by Pests Act 1949, Law of Property Act 1925. 

 
 
Author:        Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Services Manager, dallia@caerphilly.gov.uk 
  
 
Consultees: Mark S Williams, Interim Corporate Director Communities 

 Rob J Tranter, Head of Legal Services/Monitoring Officer  
 Martin Woodland, Senior Solicitor  
 Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer  

Page 53



 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
 Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration & Planning 

 Stephen Harris, Head of Business Improvement Services and Section 151 
Officer 

 Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer 
 Claire Davies, Private Sector Housing Manager 
 Fiona Wilkins, Housing Services Manager 
 Jason Lear, Principal Building Control Officer 
 Cllr.  S Morgan, Cabinet Member for Economy and Enterprise 
 Cllr. Lisa Phipps, Cabinet Member for Housing and Property 

 Cllr. D. Tudor Davies, Chair of Environment & Sustainability Scrutiny 
Committee 

 Cllr. A. Hussey, Vice Chair of Environment & Sustainability Scrutiny 
Committee 

 Cllr. A. Whitcombe, Chair of Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr. C. Forehead, Vice Chair of Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny 

Committee 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Enforced Sale Policy 
 
 
 

Page 54



APPENDIX 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Caerphilly County Borough Council 

  
 
 
 
 

Enforced Sale Policy 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 55



PURPOSE  
 

The purpose of this policy is to set out a framework for Caerphilly County Borough Council to 
use the Enforced Sale Procedure utilising relevant statutory powers with a view of targeting 
long-term problematic empty properties, and to bring these properties back into use where 
possible.  

 
Caerphilly County Borough Council recognises the importance of bringing empty properties 
back into use, as they are a wasted resource and can be a source of many problems. Long-
term empty properties can have a negative impact on the visual amenity in the immediate 
neighbourhood and cause nuisance to adjacent occupiers. They can also lead to increased fly-
tipping, vandalism, arson, potential squatting, dangerous structures and other anti-social 
behaviour.  
 
POLICY BACKGROUND 
 
The Enforced Sale Procedure is a process by which the Council brings about the sale of a 
privately-owned property. It is used as a means to bring problematic long-term vacant property 
(being residential/commercial or land) back into use, in circumstances where the present owner 
is either unwilling or unable to comply with legal notices issued by the Council, or the ownership 
is unknown.  
 
By enforcing the sale, it is anticipated that a new owner will be more willing and able to invest 
in the property, and ensure its likely reoccupation, upkeep, and proper use.  
 
The process of Enforced Sale is a method that can be utilised for the recovery of debt owing to 

the Council and could be used to recover debts where the owner of a property has made no 

attempt to make payment in respect of problematic property. 

IDENTIFYING AND PRIORITISING POTENTIAL PROPERTIES FOR ENFORCED SALE  
 
The Council uses a number of methods to identify empty private properties, including Council 
Tax information and referrals from members of the public, local Councillors, Police, Fire and 
Rescue Service, Planning Enforcement, Building Control, Private Sector Housing and Waste 
Enforcement.  
 
In order to better utilise this policy, a database of empty private properties will be compiled and 
assessed for suitability of intervention under this policy. (Note – Private Sector Housing already 
have a database of empty homes which identifies each residential unit that is a long term vacant 
- from information received annually from the Council Tax section. Each property is given a risk 
assessment score and they can therefore be ranked against each other).  
 
PRE-ACTION TO ENFORCED SALE 
  
When an empty property has been identified as a priority for intervention, steps will be taken to 
trace and contact the owner.  
 
Where an owner is identified, they will be contacted, if possible, and provided with advice and 
a range of potential solutions to bring the property back into use. For example:  
 

Page 56



 Informing the owner about the problems being caused by the property being empty and 
in need of repair, together with its impact upon the wider community;  

 Offering potential financial solutions, including the availability of loans/grants or 
negotiating the private sale or rental of the property; 

 Highlighting the consequences of allowing the property to fall into further disrepair, 
including its market value depreciation and risk of enforcement action; 

 Inspecting the property to identify if it is suitable for letting and inform the owner of the 
works required to bring it up to current standards;  

 Guiding the existing and future owners through the legal requirements of Rent Smart 
Wales registration and licensing when applicable.  

 
The market value of the property should be discussed and the owner notified about any 

Charges registered against the property. The owner will be encouraged towards selling the 

property without our formal intervention at this stage. The Council is able to provide a service 

to the owner to facilitate the Voluntary Sale either privately, or to the Council (Caerphilly Homes) 

or to a Registered Social Landlord.  

Each case will be assessed individually and the use of the Enforced Sale Procedure should be 
seen as a means of last resort. Properties will only be selected for Enforced Sale when the 
Council has exhausted all other reasonable options to resolve the existence of the empty 
property, remedy any associated problems caused by the poor condition of the property and 
the recovery of debt owed to the Council.  
 
The lead officer will liaise with other relevant departments and agencies, particularly those with 
an enforcement or financial role with a view to putting pressure on the owner to deal with the 
property. Examples of matters to be considered include:  

• Involvement of other Enforcement Authorities such as Building Control, Cleansing, 
Environmental Health, Private Sector Housing and Planning Enforcement; 

• Removal of exemptions or relaxations for Council Tax/NNDR payments;  
• Debt Recovery processes should be actively chased;  
• Involvement of mortgage lenders if appropriate.  

 
CRITERIA FOR ENFORCED SALE 
 
In order for a property to be considered suitable for enforced sale, all of the following criteria 
must be met: 

 The total recoverable debt must exceed £500; 

 The debt must not be statute barred (generally under 12-years-old); 

 The debt must be more than 2 months old; 

 The property must be vacant with no prospect of it becoming occupied in the next 6 
months; 

 The owner, if they can be traced, must have demonstrated non-compliance with 
legislation in relation to the property; 

 No positive/acceptable response has been received to letters regarding the Enforced 
Sale. If the response redeems the charge that ends the process sale can only be effected 
against a financial charge registered in the local land charges register. 

 
  

Page 57



SERVICE OF NOTICES & REGISTRATION OF CHARGES 
  
The lead officer will ensure all the Statutory Enforcement Notices have been correctly served 
and will ensure the correct notices are served in accordance with the legal procedures.  
 
Where works in default have been undertaken to comply with a notice, and a debt is owed to 
the Council, checks will be made to find out if the debt is registered against the property as a 
local land charge  
 
Where debts are not Charges registered against the property, but are personal debts, the 

Council may be able to pursue the debt at the County Court and secure an order against the 

property. 

 
LEGISLATIVE BASIS FOR ENFORCED SALE  
 
The legal process for Enforced Sale is complex, and this section is provided for general 
information only.  
 
There are various Acts of Parliament which allow the Council to register appropriate debts as 
a Charge against a property. These Acts give the Local Authority the power to enforce that 
Charge, so that the Enforced Sale Procedure under the Law of Property Act 1925 can be used 
to enforce the sale. 
 
Section 7 of the Local Land Charges Act 1975, provides that a financial Local Land Charge 
takes effect, as if it had been created by a Deed of Charge by way of a legal mortgage within 
the meaning of the Law of Property Act 1925.  
 
Section 101(1) of the Law of Property Act 1925, confers on a mortgagee a power of sale. An 
Order of the Court is not necessary as the legislation itself provides that power.  
 
Section 87(1) of the Law of Property Act 1925, confers a right of possession. In addition, many 
of the statutes used by the Council, which enable works to be carried out in default, also give 
the Council a power of sale and a right of priority over other Charges.  
 
The Council may not exercise the power of sale until a notice under Section 103 of the Law of 
Property Act 1925 is served.  (requiring payment of the debt), and the payment of such debt 
has not been made for 3 months after the service of the Notice.  
 
The Council should write to the Owner requesting the Land or Charge Certificate. The Council 
must also write to the Owner, and any other Chargee, stating that it intends to carry out an 
enforced sale. If another Chargee should pay the outstanding money, this prevents the Council 
taking priority over their Charge.  
 
Likewise, if at any stage prior to the actual sale of the property the Owner should pay the 
outstanding debt, then Enforced Sale is no longer an option.  
 
Once default of payment is apparent, the Council can apply to the Land Registry for registration 
of the Charge, claiming priority over all other Charges.  
 

Page 58



When the Charge Certificate is returned from the Land Registry, the property can be marketed 

for sale. Another letter will be sent to the Owner and any Chargees to warn them again that the 

charge is to be recovered by Enforced Sale. 

 
PROCEDURE WHERE THE PROPERTY IS NOT REGISTERED  
 
In some instances, properties may be identified which are not registered with the Land Registry. 
This may apply in relation to older properties, particularly where no recent sales have taken 
place, or the property has changed ownership without proper conveyancing. The Enforced Sale 
Procedure can be applied to unregistered property.  
 
HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998  
 
Consideration of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 must be taken into account by 
the Council. In particular, the right to respect for private and family life, home and 
correspondence and peaceful enjoyment of possessions. These rights need to be balanced 
against the general benefits and rights of neighbours and the surrounding community. For 
example, the need to deal with any dangerous or health risk conditions, the desire to bring a 
long-term empty property back into use; and to reduce crime, arson, fly tipping and the negative 
impact of the empty property on the locality.  
 
A statement that the intended action of the Council in exercising its power of sale is considered 
to be proportionate in accordance with the Act should be included in the decision-making 
document seeking authorisation to pursue an Enforced Sale.  
 
RECOVERY OF COSTS  
 
A debt can be registered as a Local Land Charge if the debtor has failed to pay the bill in relation 
to the works required under the notice and the works have been completed in default.  
 
If the statute says a debt can be enforced as a charge then you can enforce that debt whether 
it is registered as a Local Land Charge or not. In most cases, it is not important on whom the 
notice was originally served.  
 
Once the charge has been established, the land continues to be subject to the charge even if 
it has passed to subsequent owners. As such, it does not matter whether the property has 
subsequently changed ownership. 
 
Debts are affected by the Limitation Act, in that any debts that are statute barred (generally 12 
years old from the date when the expense was incurred) are no longer recoverable. Thus, any 
attempts to recover debts through Local Land Charges or by using the Enforced Sale 
Procedure, are generally not permissible after this time has passed.  
 
All debts owed to the Council on the property are recovered on sale. In addition, reasonable 
costs incurred by the Council in pursuing the sale can also be deducted. This includes all legal, 
surveying, marketing and administrative costs. 
 
 
  

Page 59



MARKETING AND SALE  
 
Some of the processes which might normally be associated with the sale of properties are not 
possible when using the Enforced Sale Procedure. For example, there is no right of entry for 
prospective purchasers to view the property or its condition and there is no power to put up a 
‘For Sale’ sign.  
 
The Council has a duty to secure the best possible price on a sale. In the first instance, sale 
will be to a preferred bidder following a valuation of the property by a suitably qualified surveyor. 
Closed tenders will be invited from Registered Social Landlords zoned to develop within the 
County Borough and Caerphilly Homes, with the property being offered to the highest bidder if 
the valuation is met or bettered. Sales to a preferred purchaser must be approved by the 
relevant Director linked to the initial Local Land Charge. In the event of two matching bids (that 
meet or exceed the valuation), the preferred bidder will be at the discretion of the relevant 
Director. 
 
A sale through public auction will be considered if: 

• No closed tenders were received for the property; 
• The valuation was not met. 

 
Upon completion of sale, a bank account will be setup to hold the proceeds of sale (less costs 
and charges). Where the owner is known, they will be advised of the sale. Where the owner is 
not known, the proceeds of sale will be held by the Council and, if the money is not claimed 
within 12 years, the money reverts to the Council. 
 

Page 60



 

CABINET – 13TH JANUARY 2021 
 

SUBJECT: TEACHERS PAY AWARD 2020-21 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION & CORPORATE 

SERVICES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To provide Cabinet with details and subsequent implications relating to the Teachers 

September 2020 pay award. To outline details of a funding shortfall and provide a proposal with 
regards to how this could be funded in the current financial year.   

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report provides details of the teachers pay award for September 2020 and the subsequent 

financial implications for the Authority if the strategy is to fully support uplift in funding, for this 
purpose, to our schools. An in year grant from Welsh Government does not fund this cost in full 
(circa 50%).  

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 It is recommended that: 
 

 Cabinet support a proposal to fund the estimated shortfall relating to the teachers pay 
award (pre-16 learners) in 2020-21 of £286k.  

 This shortfall is funded from the in-year projected underspend within Miscellaneous 
Finance budgets.  

  
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To provide financial support to our schools following an average teacher’s pay increase in 

September 2020 of 3.1%, which is a 1.1% increase above the level of uplift allowed for within 
the Authority’s approved 2020-21 Budget.  

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 On 29th July 2020, Kirsty Williams MS, Minister for Education announced that subject to 

consultation with key stakeholders that she agreed in principle to accept all the Independent 
Welsh Pay Review Body’s recommendations for teachers pay in 2020-21. On 14th October the 
Minster announced that there would be an uplift of pay “to reward our highly skilled and 
hardworking teachers across Wales”.  

 
5.2 Details of the pay award are outlined in the School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions (Wales) 

Document 2020. It was announced that the pay award would be back dated to 1st September 
2020. In recognition that teachers pay costs are a significant element of schools and Local 
Authorities budgets, it was further announced that additional funding of £5.538m in support of 

Page 61

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 8



this cost would be made available by Welsh Government through the payment of an in-year 
grant. This includes £3.981m for nursey age pupils through to year 11 and £1.556m for post-
16 learning.  

 
5.3 The details of the pay award are as follows: 
 

1. 8.48% uplift to the minimum of the teacher main pay scale; 
2. 3.75% uplift to the statutory maxima of the main pay scale; 
3. 2.75% uplift to the statutory minima and maxima of the upper pay scale; 
4. 2.75% uplift of the statutory minima and maxima of the leading practitioner pay 

range, the unqualified teachers pay scale, the leadership pay scale (including 
headteacher groups) and all allowances across all pay ranges; 

5. Statutory national pay scales for all pay points on the teacher main pay scale, 
teacher upper pay scale, unqualified teachers pay scale and leadership pay scale; 

6. In accordance with their own pay policies, schools ensuring a 2.75% uplift across 
interim pay points of the leading practitioner pay range and teacher allowances to 
match the uplift to the national framework in making individual pay progression 
decisions.  

 
5.4 The average pay uplift of 3.1%, is based on an average of points 2 to 4. This is the 

percentage uplift that Officers and Members will be familiar with from various press reports.   
 
5.5 On the 9th November 2020, we received notification that Caerphilly’s allocation of the grant 

funding for the additional cost of the uplift in the teachers’ pay award was £247k for pre-16 
learners. This funding is part of the £3.981m, as detailed in paragraph 5.2. In 2020-21 it is 
estimated that the 7/12ths impact of the additional cost of the September 2020 teachers pay 
award in Caerphilly is £533k, resulting in a shortfall of £286k.  

 
5.6 It is important to advise that any inflationary uplift for our schools is based on the Individual 

Schools Budget (ISB). This budget allocation is distributed to schools through the school 
formula methodology. To calculate the implications of the pay award, the average salary 
funding allocations provided for as part of the schools budget process in 2020-21 have been 
uplifted accordingly.  

 
5.7 On 15th December 2020, details for the post 16 funding for the teachers pay award were 

received. An allocation of £61,131 will be distributed to our secondary schools supporting our 
post 16 learners.  

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 Details are based on an average uplift of 3.1% for teachers pay from September 2020. The 

funding shortfall is in relation to nursery age pupils through to year 11.    
 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 The recommendation to support an increase in funding in relation to the teachers pay award 

September 2020 supports the principles of the Authority’s Budget Strategy in 2020-21. It also 
supports the following Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act 
(Wales) 2015: - 

 

 A prosperous Wales. 

 A resilient Wales. 

 A healthier Wales. 

 A more equal Wales. 

 A Wales of cohesive communities. 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language. 

 A globally responsible Wales. 

Page 62



 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 Effective financial planning is a key element in ensuring that the Well-being Goals within the 

Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 are met. 
 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no potential equalities implications of this report and its recommendations on 

groups or individuals who fall under the categories identified in Section 6 of the Council's 
Strategic Equality Plan, therefore no Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out. 

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 A grant of £247k has been provided by WG to meet the additional in-year cost of the 

September 2020 teachers pay award for nursery age pupils through to year 11. 
 
10.2 In 2020-21 it is estimated that the 7/12ths impact of the additional cost of the September 2020 

teachers pay award in Caerphilly is £533k, resulting in a shortfall of £286k.  
 
10.3 It is recommended that the £286k shortfall for 2020-21 is funded from projected underspends I
 in Miscellaneous Finance budgets. 
 
10.4 The full-year impact of the pay award will be included in the 2021/22 Draft Budget Proposals.  
 
  
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are none in respect of this report. 
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no consultation responses which have not been reflected in this report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER 
 
13.1 Local Government Finance Act 1992 and regulations made under the Act. 
 
 
Author:        Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager (Education, Lifelong Learning & Schools)  
         

E-mail:  southj@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Tel: 01443 864855  

 

Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 
 Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education & Corporate Services 

Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer 
 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 

  Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 

Page 63

mailto:southj@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 64



 

 
CABINET – 13TH JANUARY 2021 

 

SUBJECT: DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR 2021/22 
 

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION & CORPORATE SERVICES  
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To present Cabinet with details of draft budget proposals for the 2021/22 financial year to allow 

for a period of consultation prior to a final decision by Council on the 24th February 2021.  
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report provides details of draft budget proposals based on the Welsh Government (WG) 

Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement for 2021/22.  
 
2.2 The report also provides details of a range of cost and service pressures that require funding, 

along with a proposed increase of 3.9% in Council Tax to enable the Authority to set a balanced 
budget for the 2021/22 financial year. 

 
2.3 An updated indicative Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is also appended to the report 

showing a potential savings requirement of circa £20.7m for the four-year period 2022/23 to 
2025/26. 

 
 
3.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Cabinet is asked to: -  

 
3.1.1 Endorse the draft 2021/22 budget proposals. 
 
3.1.2 Support the proposal to increase Council Tax by 3.9% for the 2021/22 financial year to 

ensure that a balanced budget is achieved (Council Tax Band D being set at £1,230.57). 
 
3.1.3 Endorse the proposal to appoint four fixed-term project managers for an initial period of 

2 years to support the delivery of the Council’s Transformation Programme and “Place 
Shaping” agenda, with the total cost of £368k being funded from a £1.8m reserve 
previously approved by Council to support the delivery of the MTFP.     

 
3.1.4 Agree that the draft budget proposals should now be subject to consultation prior to final 

2021/22 budget proposals being presented to Cabinet/Council in February 2021. 
 
3.1.5 Note the indicative potential savings requirement of £20.7m for the four-year period 

2022/23 to 2025/26. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Council is required annually to approve proposals to set a balanced budget and agree a Council 

Tax rate. 

Page 65

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 9



 

 
4.2 Council is required to put in place a sound and prudent financial framework to support service 

delivery. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 Welsh Government (WG) Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement for 2021/22 
 
5.1.1 The Local Government Financial Settlement received from WG on an annual basis is referred 

to as Aggregate External Finance (AEF). This consists of a Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and 
Redistributed Non-Domestic Rates (business rates). Details of the Provisional Local 
Government Financial Settlement are normally announced by WG in early October each year. 
However, due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and the delay in undertaking the UK 
Government spending review, details of the Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement 
for 2021/22 were not released until the 22nd December 2020. 

 
5.1.2 The key points of the WG Provisional 2021/22 Local Government Financial Settlement are the 

following: -  
 

 An overall net cash increase of 4% in the Aggregate External Finance (Revenue Support 
Grant (RSG) and Redistributed Non-Domestic Rates) on an all-Wales basis. This cash 
increase includes specific grants totalling circa ££5.13m that have been transferred into the 
RSG in respect of the 2020/21 teachers’ pay award and coastal risk management. 
 

 For Caerphilly CBC there is a cash uplift of 3.1% in the Aggregate External Finance which 
equates to £9m after adjusting for changes in the Council Tax base.  
 

 Caerphilly CBC’s element of the £5.13m specific grants transferred into the Settlement is 
£247k relating to the 2020/21 teachers’ pay award. 
 

 Changes to other pass-ported grants in the Provisional Settlement result in a net reduction 
of £202k in relation to the tapering of WG funding for PFI Schemes. 
 

 The capital allocations available to Caerphilly CBC in the RSG and from the General Capital 
Grant have decreased by £45k from the 2020/21 financial year. 

 
5.1.3 The UK Government has allocated £766m to WG in respect of the ongoing financial impact of 

Covid-19 for the 2021/22 financial year. This is far below the levels of funding that have been 
allocated in 2020/21 and the distribution of this funding will continue to be dealt with outside of 
the core Financial Settlement. 

 
5.1.4 The 2021/22 Draft Budget Proposals set out in this report do not include additional costs or 

income losses associated with Covid-19 on the assumption that these costs will continue to be 
funded through WG from April 2021. This does present a significant financial risk and the 
position will be closely monitored as we progress through the new financial year.  

 
5.2 2021/22 Draft Budget Proposals 
 
5.2.1 The proposals contained within this report will deliver a balanced budget for 2021/22 on the 

basis that Council Tax is increased by 3.9%. Table 1 provides a summary: -  
 
 

Table 1 – Summary 
 

Paragraph Description £m £m 

5.1.2 Aggregate External Finance (3.1% uplift)  9.000 

5.2.3 – 5.2.11 Schools cost pressures 3.233  

Page 66



 

5.2.12 – 5.2.17 General Fund Services inflationary cost 
pressures   

2.787  

5.2.18 – 5.2.47 General Fund service pressures/proposed 
new investments 

8.089  

5.2.48 Approved savings in advance from 2020/21  2.011 

5.3.1 – 5.3.2 Proposed Council Tax increase (3.9%)  3.097 

 TOTAL: - 14.109 14.109 

 
5.2.2 It is pleasing to report that based on Council Tax being increased by 3.9% there will be no 

requirement for any new savings to be identified to balance the budget for the 2021/22 financial 
year. Furthermore, the proposals in this report will: - 

 
- Maintain service provision across the Council. 
- Fund increasing demand and service pressures in key areas such as Social Services and 

Education. 
- Enable new community focussed investments in areas such as Caerphilly Cares and the 

proposed Community Empowerment Fund. 
- Provide the capacity and resilience required to drive forward the Team Caerphilly 

Transformation Programme and ‘Place Shaping’ investments. 
- Address legacy issues in respect of income shortfalls in a number of service areas. 

  
5.2.3 The Schools cost pressures totalling £3.233m are set out in Table 2 below - 
 

Table 2 – Schools Cost Pressures 
 

 £m 

Teachers Pay at 3.1% (Sept 2020) and 1% (Sept 2021) 2.042 

Teachers Employer Pension Contributions  0.000 

APT&C Pay at 1% (April 2021) 0.293 

APT&C Employer Pension Contributions 0.000 

Living Wage 0.016 

Non-Pay Inflation at 0.75% 0.169 

Other Service Pressures 0.713 

TOTAL: - 3.233 

 
5.2.4 Teachers Pay - Teachers pay increased across most of the scale ranges by 3.1% with effect 

from September 2020 and funding has been provided in the Provisional Settlement to reflect 
the 2021/22 impact of this. However, the Chancellor of the Exchequer has announced a pay 
freeze for the public sector for 2021/22 except for those earning £24k or less (these will receive 
a lump sum uplift of up to £250), and those working in certain sectors such as frontline NHS 
staff. Due to this announcement WG has not received funding for 2021/22 pay uplifts for those 
staff in local government (including teachers) who earn in excess of £24k. 

 
5.2.5 Whilst the Chancellor’s statements in relation to pay constraints are acknowledged there is a 

risk of resistance to such pay policy, particularly considering the demands on staff during the 
ongoing Covid-19 pandemic. With this in mind it is considered prudent to include some provision 
in the 2021/22 budget proposals for potential pay awards so a further uplift of 1% in teachers’ 
pay is currently assumed from September 2021 (along with provision for those staff who will 
qualify for the £250 uplift). This will be held centrally in the first instance and reviewed once 
there is clarity around the agreed pay position for the 2021/22 financial year. 

 
5.2.6 Teachers Employers’ Pension Contributions – There was a significant uplift of 7.12% in 

employer pension contributions for teachers from September 2019. This increase has been fully 
funded in the budgets delegated to schools and there is currently no assumed further increase 
for the 2021/22 financial year. 

 

Page 67



 

5.2.7 APT&C Pay at 1% - As mentioned in paragraph 5.2.5, whilst the Chancellor’s statements in 
relation to pay constraints are acknowledged it is considered prudent to include some provision 
in the 2021/22 budget proposals for potential pay awards so a 1% uplift for APT&C staff is 
assumed from April 2021 (along with provision for those staff who will qualify for the £250 uplift). 
This will also be held centrally in the first instance and reviewed once there is clarity around the 
agreed pay position for the 2021/22 financial year. 

 
5.2.8 APT&C Employer Pension Contributions - The Greater Gwent (Torfaen) Pension Fund is 

subject to an independent triennial valuation of its assets and liabilities. The results of the latest 
valuation concluded that no increase would be required in the employer contributions for the 
2020/21 and 2021/22 financial years with an increase of 1% being required for 2022/23.  

 
5.2.9 Foundation Living Wage – Caerphilly CBC is a Living Wage Foundation employer, so a sum 

is included in the draft budget proposals in respect of relevant school staff to allow for annual 
increases in the Foundation Living Wage hourly rate.  

 
5.2.10 Non-pay Inflation at 0.75% - The Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation rate in November 2020 

was 0.3%. It is proposed that the non-pay uplift for 2021/22 should be set at 0.75% to allow 
some headroom for increases during the financial year. 

 
5.2.11 Other Service Pressures – This includes the following: - 
 

 Second satellite class for Trinity Fields. 

 Floor area and National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) changes. 

 Potential changes in social needs funding (primary and secondary). 

 Potential for further costs arising from formula changes linked to updated Free School 
Meals data. 

 
5.2.12 The General Fund Services inflationary cost pressures totalling £2.787m are set out in Table 3 

below: - 
 

Table 3 – General Fund Services Inflationary Cost Pressures 
 

 £m 

Pay at 1% (APT&C staff) – Including £250 for salaries of £24k or less 1.773 

Living Wage (APT&C staff) 0.037 

Employer Pension Contributions (APT&C staff) 0.000 

Non-pay Inflation at 0.75% 1.100 

Non-pay inflation (Fees and Charges) at 0.75%  (0.122) 

TOTAL: - 2.787 

 
5.2.13 Pay at 1% (APT&C staff) – As previously mentioned it is considered prudent to include some 

provision in the 2021/22 budget proposals for potential pay awards so a 1% uplift for APT&C 
staff is assumed from April 2021 (along with provision for those staff who will qualify for the 
£250 uplift). This will be held centrally in the first instance and reviewed once there is clarity 
around the agreed pay position for the 2021/22 financial year. 

 
5.2.14 Foundation Living Wage (APT&C staff) – Caerphilly CBC is a Living Wage Foundation 

employer, so a sum is included in the draft budget proposals in respect of APT&C staff to allow 
for annual increases in the Foundation Living Wage hourly rate. 

 
5.2.15 Employer Pension Contributions (APT&C staff) – As mentioned in paragraph 5.2.8 the 

results of the latest triennial valuation of the Pension Fund concluded that no increase would 
be required in the employer contributions for the 2020/21 and 2021/22 financial years with an 
increase of 1% being required for 2022/23. 

 

Page 68



 

5.2.16 Non-pay Inflation at 0.75% - The Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation rate in November 2020 
was 0.3%. It is proposed that the non-pay uplift for 2021/22 should be set at 0.75% to allow 
some headroom for increases during the financial year.  

 
5.2.17 Non-pay Inflation (Fees and Charges) at 0.75% - A generic increase of 0.75% is assumed 

for Fees and Charges. 
 
5.2.18 It is incumbent upon the Council to set a realistic budget each year. Table 4 provides details of 

the 2021/22 General Fund inescapable service pressures that have been identified along with 
a range of new investments that require consideration in respect of funding: - 

 
Table 4 – General Fund Inescapable Service Pressures and Proposed New Investments 
       

 £m 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) additional liability 0.602 

Other pass-ported grants (0.202) 

Social Services cost pressures 2.500 

Education & Lifelong Learning cost pressures   1.436 

Planning Services 0.428 

Digital Services 1.212 

Additional capacity for Transformation/Place Shaping 0.526 

Income budget realignment 0.567 

Caerphilly Cares 0.284 

Community Empowerment Fund 0.328 

Fire Service Levy 0.162 

Glamorgan Archives 0.011 

Health & Safety – Fire Safety Officers 0.080 

City Deal (Partnership revenue contribution) 0.003 

City Deal (debt charges) 0.089 

Review of Car Parking charges 0.090 

Education Achievement Service (EAS) (0.028) 

TOTAL: - 8.089 

 
5.2.19 CTRS additional liability – The Authority is required to fund a Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

(CTRS). This replaced Council Tax Benefit a few years ago and is a means-tested benefit that 
assists in full or part towards a resident’s Council Tax bills. The additional liability arises from 
the proposal to increase Council Tax by 3.9% in 2021/22. 

 
5.2.20 Other pass-ported grants – Reduction in budget to reflect the net reduction in the Provisional 

Settlement of £202k in relation to the tapering of WG funding for PFI Schemes 
 
5.2.21 Social Services cost pressures – Based on an assessment of current commitments it is 

anticipated that growth of £2.5m is required to meet the full-year cost of placements in the 
2021/22 financial year. Areas where pressures are being experienced include children’s 
residential care and fostering, domiciliary care and supported living.  

 
5.2.22 Education and Lifelong Learning cost pressures – There are a range of cost pressures 

within this service area totalling £1.436m. The most significant of these relate to school 
improvement, Additional Learning Needs (ALN), potential additional costs arising from the 
forthcoming renewal of contracts for Home to School/College Transport, and budget 
realignment to address the increasing cost of maternity cover. It is also proposed to reinstate 
the £333k ‘50/50 Building Maintenance Budget in Schools’ which was previously withdrawn to 
support Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) savings requirements. Since the withdrawal of 
this budget, financial support has been offered to schools through Education Reserves, but this 
is not sustainable in the medium to longer-term and without this funding there will be an adverse 
impact on maintenance programmes. 

 

Page 69



 

5.2.23 Planning Services – At its meeting on the 9th December 2020, the Housing & Regeneration 
Scrutiny Committee considered a report outlining proposals for staff budget growth and 
realignment of fee income targets in Planning Services. The recommendations in the report 
were endorsed by the Scrutiny Committee and if approved as part of the 2021/22 budget will 
require funding of £428k. 

 
5.2.24 Digital Services – Over the past 12 months the council has witnessed the benefits of advanced 

technology firsthand. The Covid-19 pandemic changed the landscape greatly, and there is little 
doubt that services would not have continued functioning without the adoption of new 
technology and digital transformation. Moving forward we need to ensure that we have a secure 
and safe environment for the delivery of all services via a robust investment and change 
programme. To ensure that we have a fit-for-purpose ICT infrastructure and digital application 
the IT service has developed a 5-year strategy that looks at developing a culture of 
transformation through the use of modern technology. 

 
5.2.25 To facilitate the development of digital, investment in core infrastructure and systems will be 

required. The proposed funding of £1.212m will allow for the review of the existing infrastructure 
along with investment in the latest Microsoft Office 365 licenses for greater working flexibility 
and the highest level of security, whilst at the same time enhancing the customer experience of 
service delivery. 

 
5.2.26 The investment will also provide the ability to analyse data and use information for informed 

decision-making based on real live data, which we are currently unable to do.  ICT and digital 
technologies are core to future business models and for the organisation to flourish it will require 
a continuous investment programme over the coming years. This will also mean investing now 
to save for the future.  As we take forward the proposed investment in Microsoft technologies 
other applications will be rationalised and in some cases withdrawn to develop a more agile 
application base. This will give us the opportunity to explore and evaluate the use of Cloud 
services and assess the practicalities of “On Premise” solutions via “Cloud” services.   

 
5.2.27 Additional capacity for Transformation/Place Shaping – The financial challenges  we face 

in future years are unprecedented and coupled with the changing needs of our communities 
and the emergence of new technologies, it is inevitable and expected that the Council responds 
to these demands and opportunities in order for us to remain relevant and sustainable over the 
longer-term. Even before the emergence of Covid-19 it was widely accepted that the Council 
cannot continue as it is and it was acknowledged that we needed to examine the way in which 
we operate and use our resources to deliver the services required by our communities across 
the county borough.  

 
5.2.28 At its meeting on the 12th June 2019 Cabinet approved the Future Caerphilly Transformation 

Strategy, Team Caerphilly – Better Together. This Strategy sets out details of a major 
transformation programme to examine how a future operating model for the Council can be 
developed. The principles of this new operating model include how services are prioritised, how 
they can become more business efficient, to explore opportunities for greater customer focus 
and digital delivery, and to consider alternative delivery models and seek out commercial 
opportunities. Furthermore, to enable the Council to continue providing high quality value for 
money services in an environment that will require new approaches and new skills, the Strategy 
acknowledges that a new relationship will need to be built with staff and communities.  

 
5.2.29 The Strategy is multi-faceted and at the core of the programme of change is the new mantra of 

Social Heart and Commercial Head. This recognises a commitment to public service and the 
needs of citizens, but also demonstrates a commitment to explore commercial and investment 
opportunities, where appropriate, to generate income that can be reinvested in services to help 
them remain resilient in the current challenging financial climate. 

 
5.2.30 The strategic programme of “whole-authority” work is being delivered through the following key 

themes, which underpin the new operating model of the Council: - 
 

Page 70



 

 
 
5.2.31 Good progress has been made in implementing the Strategic Action Plan that underpins the 

Transformation Strategy. The emergence of Covid-19 and the required response has 
accelerated the pace of change in some areas and we will now seek to build on this moving 
forward to ensure that we can offer cost effective, resilient services that meet the needs of our 
communities through these challenging times and in the medium to longer-term. 

 
5.2.32 The learning that the Council has developed through its response to Covid-19 has helped 

reshape and expand the transformation programme. At its meeting of the 22nd July 2020, 
Cabinet endorsed the inclusion of ten corporate reviews within the Team Caerphilly – Better 
Together programme, all of which expand on or embed further many of the positive changes 
implemented in response to Covid-19. The Corporate Reviews are as follows: - 

 

1 Walk in Services Review 

O
n

e
C

o
u
n

c
il 

L
e
a

rn
in

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o
n
 

2 Remote Contact Review 

3 Front Line Delivery Review 

4 Support Services Review 

5 Information, Insight and Intelligence Review 

6 Flexible Working Review 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 &

  

R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 7 Sustainable Financial Planning Review 

8 Workforce Development Review 

9 Corporate Volunteering & Community Partnership Review 

10 Decision-Making Review 

 
5.2.33 The Council is also developing an ambitious “Place Shaping” investment programme for the 

county borough, totalling circa £500m spanning the next few years, which will lever in significant 
socio-economic benefits. Details of this proposed major investment programme will be shared 
with Members in a Members’ Seminar prior to firm proposals being presented to Cabinet in 
February 2021.  

 
5.2.34 In order to deliver this wide ranging and ambitious change programme of significant investments 

consisting of many individual complex projects, whilst continuing with the Council’s 
transformation programme and other priorities such as the Covid-19 response, Regeneration, 
Housing new build, and delivering the Corporate Plan objectives; investment in additional 
people resources is required. 

 

Page 71



 

5.2.35 The £526k growth bid will be used to permanently fund the current three fixed-term 
Transformation Manager posts and the existing fixed-term Communications and Engagement 
Officer post. In addition to this, a permanent Head of Transformation is required to lead the 
overall Transformation Programme as well as a Head of Prosperity, in order to accelerate our 
economic regeneration priority. 

 
5.2.36 In addition to the proposed £526k growth bid, project management capacity is also required to 

develop the many projects within the Transformation and “Place Shaping” programmes. Four 
fixed-term project manager posts are therefore proposed to accelerate the projects already in 
place and to commence projects that have not yet begun. It is proposed that these posts are 
initially implemented for a period of two years at a total cost off £368k and are funded from a 
£1.8m reserve previously approved by Council to support the delivery of the MTFP.     

 
5.2.37 The additional staff resources are required to deliver the exciting and bold over-arching change 

programme for the county borough and the organisation, ensuring that both remain sustainable 
and resilient, economically, socially and environmentally over the longer-term.  

 
5.2.38 Income budget realignment – There are a number of service areas where there is a trend in 

recent years of income budgets not being achieved. Despite steps being taken to introduce 
further efficiencies to address these shortfalls it is now prudent to recognise the actual levels of 
income being generated in these areas and to adjust budgets accordingly. The proposed 
adjustments are £273k for Leisure Centres, £83k for Llancaiach Fawr, £94k for Caerphilly 
Adventures and £117k for Industrial Property rentals.     

 
5.2.39 Caerphilly Cares – At its meeting on the 11th November 2020, Cabinet approved a proposal to 

develop the existing Buddy Scheme and Community Regeneration Legacy into the Caerphilly 
Cares service, which aims to ensure people receive the right support, in the right place, and 
right time, using a single point of contact through a triage system. Cabinet also approved the 
use of 2020/21 underspends in the Children and Communities Grant (CCG) and/or Social 
Services Reserves to fund this service in the short-term. 

 
5.2.40 There is now an opportunity to approve funding totalling £284k to fund this service on a recurring 

basis from 2021/22 onwards.   
 
5.2.41 Community Empowerment Fund – It is proposed to establish a Fund totalling £328k which 

would result in an allocation of £4.5k to each Member to support community-based projects. If 
this funding is agreed a further report will be prepared outlining the parameters for this proposed 
initiative.  

 
5.2.42 Fire Service Levy – The 2021/22 draft budget for the South Wales Fire & Rescue Service 

requires an increase of 2.57% in Caerphilly CBC’s contribution. A 0.75% uplift is proposed for 
the Council’s core budgets for non-pay inflation in 2021/22 which results in a further £162k 
being required to meet the proposed 2.57% for the Fire Service Levy.  

 
5.2.43 Glamorgan Archives – A further sum of £11k is also required to meet the Council’s 2021/22 

contribution to the Glamorgan Archives service.  
 
5.2.44 Health & Safety – Fire Safety Officers – It is proposed that funding of £80k should be built 

into the 2021/22 base budget to fund two Fire Safety Officer posts that are currently funded on 
a fixed-term basis.  

 
5.2.45 City Deal partnership revenue contribution and City Deal debt charges – There is a small 

increase of £3k required for 2021/22 in respect of the revenue contribution for the City Deal 
Partnership. The City Deal includes a borrowing requirement of £120m for the ten partner Local 
Authorities and an additional £89k is required for 2021/22 to meet the current anticipated cost 
for Caerphilly CBC’s share of potential borrowing that may be undertaken during the year.     

  

Page 72



 

5.2.46 Review of Car Parking charges – On the 15th December 2020 a Joint Scrutiny Committee 
meeting (Environment & Sustainability Scrutiny and Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committees) took place to consider the findings of the joint task and finish group that was 
established to review car parks managed by the Council. The Joint Scrutiny Committee 
endorsed some of the recommendations in the report and these are due to be considered buy 
Cabinet on the 13th January 2021. If approved these recommendations will require funding of 
£90k.  

 
5.2.47 Education Achievement Service (EAS) - There is a proposed 2% reduction in the level of the 

Council’s contribution to the EAS in 2021/22 which results in a saving of £28k. 
 
5.2.48 Savings in Advance - The Final 2020/21 Budget Proposals approved by Council on the 20th 

February 2020 included approved savings in advance of £1.931m. Further savings in advance 
totalling £80k have also been identified during the 2020/21 financial year resulting in a total of 
£2.011m being available to support the budget for 2021/22. 

 
5.3 Council Tax Implications 2021/22 
 
5.3.1 The draft budget proposals within this report include a proposed increase of 3.9% in Council 

Tax for the 2021/22 financial year. This will increase the Caerphilly CBC Band D precept from 
£1,184.38 to £1,230.57 i.e. an annual increase of £46.19 or weekly increase of £0.89. 

 
5.3.2 The proposed increase of 3.9% for 2021/22 will result in the following totals for the Caerphilly 

CBC element of the Council Tax (the Police & Crime Commissioner and Town/Community 
Council precepts would be added to these totals when confirmed at a later date): - 

 
 Table 5 – 2021/22 Council Tax (CCBC Element) at 3.9% Increase   
 

Band Council Tax 
(CCBC Element) 

£ 

Weekly 
Increase 

£ 

A 820.38 0.59 

B 957.11 0.69 

C 1,093.84 0.79 

D 1,230.57 0.89 

E 1,504.03 1.09 

F 1,777.49 1.28 

G 2,050.95 1.48 

H 2,461.14 1.78 

I 2,871.33 2.07 

 
5.4 Financial Outlook for Future Years 
 
5.4.1 Due to the ongoing programme of austerity and increasing demand for a number of services, 

the financial position for Local Government has been very challenging in recent years. During 
the period 2008/09 to 2020/21 Caerphilly CBC has delivered savings of £106m to address 
reductions in funding and inescapable cost and service pressures. 

 
5.4.2 Whilst the 3.1% uplift in the 2021/22 Provisional Settlement is welcomed, the future funding 

situation for Local Government is likely to be challenging due to the unprecedented fiscal impact 
of Covid-19 and the strain that will put on public finances for years to come 

 
5.4.3 The UK Government has undertaken a spending review for 2021/22 only at this stage, so there 

is no indication of likely funding levels in the medium to long-term. The Council’s MTFP has 
been updated based on a range of assumptions, resulting in a potential savings requirement of 
£20.7m for the four-year period 2022/23 to 2025/26. Details are provided in Appendix 1 and the 
following is a summary of the key assumptions: - 

 

Page 73



 

 A 1% uplift year-on-year in respect of WG funding. 

 An increase of 3.9% per annum for Council Tax. 

 2% per annum for pay inflation (all staff including teachers). 

 1% per annum for APT&C employer pension contributions. 

 Tapered increase in non-pay inflation rising to Bank of England target of 2% by 2025/26. 

 A total of £2.3m over the four-year period for schools’ service pressures. 

 £1.5m per annum for anticipated increased demand for Social Services.  
 
5.4.4 Future financial forecasting is very sensitive to even minor changes in assumptions. For 

example, a 2% increase in WG funding per annum would reduce the four-year potential saving 
requirement to £8.8m. Conversely, a cash flat position in terms of WG funding would increase 
the potential savings requirement to £32.3m. A range of potential scenarios will be considered 
during the coming months. 

 
5.4.5 The Council’s Transformation Programme will be the key driver in ensuring that financial 

resilience is maintained in future years. The financial position will be regularly reviewed, and 
periodic updates will be provided for Members.  

 
5.5 Conclusion 
 
5.5.1 This report provides details of the Draft Budget Proposals for 2021/22 based on the WG 

Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement. 
 
5.5.2 A balanced budget can be delivered based on a proposed Council Tax increase of 3.9%. 
  
5.5.3 The report also provides details of the updated Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP), which 

indicates that further savings of circa £20.7m may be required for the four-year period 2022/23 
to 2025/26.   

   
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 The UK Government has allocated £766m to WG in 2021/22 for the ongoing financial impact of 

Covid-19. This is far below the levels of funding that have been allocated in 2020/21 and will 
continue to be dealt with outside of the core Financial Settlement. The 2021/22 Draft Budget 
Proposals set out in this report to not include additional costs or income losses associated with 
Covid-19 on the assumption that these costs will continue to be funded through WG grants. 

  
6.2 A range of other assumptions have been made throughout the report in respect of pay and non-

pay inflationary increases, inescapable service pressures and the level of funding settlements 
moving forward. 

 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 

7.1 The budget setting process encompasses all the resources used by the Council to deliver 
services and meet priorities. 

 
7.2 Effective financial planning and the setting of a balanced budget support the following Well-

being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015: - 
 

 A prosperous Wales. 

 A resilient Wales. 

 A healthier Wales. 

 A more equal Wales. 

 A Wales of cohesive communities. 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language. 

Page 74



 

 A globally responsible Wales. 
 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 Effective financial planning is a key element in ensuring that the Well-being Goals within the 

Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 are met. 
 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1      An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan 

and supplementary guidance. No potential unlawful discrimination and/or low level or minor 
negative impact has been identified; therefore, a full EIA has not been carried out.  

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

10.1 As detailed throughout the report. 
 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Where staff reductions may be required as a consequence of savings proposals in future years 

the Council will firstly try to achieve this through ‘natural wastage’ and not filling vacancies. 
However, where this is not possible the Council will utilise agreed HR policies and compulsory 
redundancies will only be considered when all other options have been fully exhausted. 

 
11.2 The Trade Unions will be fully consulted on the 2021/22 draft budget proposals.  
 
 
12.  CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 The Council undertook a large-scale consultation called ‘The Caerphilly Conversation’ between 

18th November 2020 and 3rd January 2021. Designed to seek the views of those who live and 
work within the county borough, the survey provided people with the opportunity to share their 
experiences of life across the area; their views on public services, and suggestions for where 
things could be improved as we look to the future. 

 
12.2 Key areas covered in the survey included: -  
 

 Understanding residents’ views on the Council’s response to Covid-19. 

 Helping shape the Council’s recovery over future years. 

 Helping inform our deliberations over next year’s budget. 

 Preferences on the Council Tax levels for the forthcoming year. 

 Informing our ongoing discussions around ‘Place Shaping’ over the medium to longer-term. 

 Providing specific insight that can help shape the ten corporate reviews linked to the 

TeamCaerphilly – Better Together transformation strategy. 

  

12.3 The survey was available on the Council’s website and promoted widely through digital media 
channels.  To ensure as many people as possible were able to have their say, the survey was 
also included in a special edition of Newsline that was delivered to every home within the county 
borough.   

 
12.4 The results of this survey will be important in influencing the delivery of services in future years 

and ensuring the effective use of resources and a detailed report on the consultation outcomes 
will be presented to Cabinet. 

Page 75



 

 
12.6 Further consultation will now take place on the 2021/22 Draft Budget Proposals including a Joint 

Scrutiny Committee meeting scheduled for the 14th January 2021. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 The Local Government Acts 1998 and 2003. 
 
 
Author: Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer 
 

E-mail: harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Tel: 01443 863022 

 
Consultees: Corporate Management Team 
 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer 
 Andrew Southcombe, Finance Manager, Corporate Finance 

Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance and Customer 
Service 

  
Appendices: - 
 
Appendix 1 - Indicative Medium-Term Financial Plan 2022/23 to 2025/26 
 
Background Papers: - 
 
Cabinet (12/06/19) 
 
Future Caerphilly Transformation Strategy - #TeamCaerphilly – Better Together. 
 
Cabinet (16/07/20) 
 
Strengthening TeamCaerphilly 
 
Cabinet (11/11/20) 
 
Caerphilly Cares       
 
Special Housing and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee (09/12/20) 
 
Planning Services Staffing and Budget Report                             
 
Joint Scrutiny Committee (Housing & Sustainability Scrutiny and Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny 
Committees) 15/12/20.                        
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council Car Parks Task and Finish Group. 
 

Page 76

mailto:harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

Indicative Medium-Term Financial Plan - 2022/23 to 2025/26

Description 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Aggregate External Finance (1% uplift per annum) 2,924 2,953 2,982 3,012

Council Tax (3.9% increase per annum) 3,228 3,368 3,513 3,665

Total Funding to support budget 6,152 6,321 6,496 6,677

Schools Cost Pressures

Teachers Pay (2% uplift per annum) 1,311 1,685 1,719 1,754

APT&C Pay (2% uplift per annum) 268 275 283 290

APT&C  Employer Pension Contributions (1% uplift per annum) 135 139 142 146

Living Wage 16 16 16 16

Non-Pay Inflation (1.25%, 1.50%, 1.75%, 2.00%) 283 344 408 474

Schools Service Pressures 305 1,011 500 530

Total Schools Cost Pressures 2,318 3,470 3,068 3,210

General Fund Services Inflationary Pressures

APT&C Pay (2% uplift per annum) 2,562 2,613 2,665 2,719

Living Wage 37 37 37 37

Employer Pension Contributions (1% uplift per annum) 912 921 930 940

Non-Pay Inflation (1.25%, 1.50%, 1.75%, 2.00%) 1,991 2,512 3,085 3,717

Non-Pay Inflation - Fees and Charges (1.25%, 1.50%, 1.75%, 2.00%) (196) (238) (282) (328)

Total General Fund Services Inflationary Pressures 5,306 5,845 6,436 7,085

Inescapable Service Pressures

CTRS Additional Liability (3.9% per annum) 626 650 675 702

Social Services 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500

Digital Services 100 100 0 0

City Deal (Partnership Revenue Contribution) 3 3 3 3

City Deal (Debt Charges) 122 185 254 252

Education Achievement Service (EAS) (15) (10) 0 0

Inescapable Service Pressures 2,335 2,427 2,432 2,457

Annual Shortfall 3,807 5,422 5,440 6,075

Cumulative Shortfall 3,807 9,229 14,670 20,744

Page 77



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 78


	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 9 Rhagfyr 2020.
	4 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 16 Rhagfyr 2020.
	5 Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.
	6 Grŵp Gorchwyl a Gorffen Meysydd Parcio Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili.
	Appendix
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3
	Atodiad 4

	7 Polisi Gwerthu Gorfodol.
	Appendix
	Atodiad 1

	8 Dyfarniad Cyflog Athrawon 2020/21.
	9 Cynigion Cyllideb Drafft ar gyfer 2021/22.
	Atodiad 1


